



NEIGHBORHOOD COUNCILS

NEIGHBORHOOD COUNCIL #3
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2016, 7:30 P.M.
CITY HALL COMMUNITY ROOM
2929 TAPO CANYON ROAD

AGENDA

NC #3 Chair	Robert Sherman
NC #3 Vice Chair	Kelly Tinker
NC #3 Secretary	Pamela Dean
NC Coordinator	Emily Habib
City Council Liaison	Council Member Mike Judge

1. Call to Order/Welcome/Pledge of Allegiance/Introductions
2. Agenda Review
3. Approval of Minutes
4. Correspondence
5. Public Statements/Comments

This is the time allotted for public statements or comments on matters within the subject matter and jurisdiction of the Executive Board not on the agenda. Statements and comments are limited to no more than five (5) minutes per speaker.

6. Informational Presentation: None
7. New Business
 - a. Discussion of possible revisions the City's Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance
 - b. Nomination of a representative to the Special Event Support Review Committee
8. Neighborhood Council Coordinator's Report
9. Executive Board Comments

This is the time allotted for Executive Board member statements or comments on matters within the subject matter and jurisdiction of the Neighborhood Councils, to request a future agenda item, or to give an Ad Hoc Committee Report. This is also the time to make any announcements related to community events and other items of interest.

10. Adjournment: Thursday, December 15, 2016, 7:30 p.m.

/s/ _____
Mara Malch
Deputy Director



MEETING NOTES

1. Call to Order/Welcome/Pledge of Allegiance

Secretary Pamela Dean confirmed a quorum was not present.

Pepper Aarvold	E	Robert Sherman	P
Lori Cromley	E	Pamela Dean	P
Ryan Gennaro	P	Shannon Johnson	P
Mike Perenchio	P	Lois Ann Lengel	E
Ashley Chelonis	*	Elaine Litster	E
Tracy Fessler	P	Kelly Tinker	A
Jackie Sheldon	E	P=Present; E=Excused; A=Absent	

* Leave of Absence

2. Agenda Review

No changes were made to the agenda.

3. Approval of Minutes

Due to lack of a quorum, the minutes of September 15, 2016 will be reviewed at the November 10, 2016 meeting and the October 13, 2016 meeting notes will be included for reference only.

4. Correspondence: None

5. Public Statements/Comments

Bari Lynn Rennick, Chair of the Simi Valley Days Parade Committee, presented the 2016 Chairman Award trophy to the Executive Board for its parade entry, a life sized covered wagon built by Ryan Gennaro, which carried the Santa Susana High School Acapella Choir. She congratulated the Neighborhood Councils on the success of their first entry in the parade and expressed her desire that they will participate in future parades.

Tom Hartfield, candidate for City Council, expressed appreciation to the Executive Board members for the time that they dedicate to the Neighborhood Council program and explained that he previously served on the Executive Board of Neighborhood Council #2.

6. Informational Presentation

a. 211: A Comprehensive Information and Referral Service for Ventura County

Rossanna Guerra from Interface Children & Family Services, informed the Executive Board about the 211 Ventura County program. She stated that 211 is a free, confidential referral/information helpline and website that

connects people to essential health and human services 24 hours a day, seven days a week. The program in Ventura County was the first in California. The average annual number of calls over the years has been approximately 20,000.

The local call center has bilingual call specialists immediately available in English, Spanish, and Cantonese. Furthermore, 211 utilizes phone based translation service for information and referrals in over 150 languages. Among the referrals they offer are housing, food, employment, veteran's services and healthcare. They also assist during disasters so that emergency responders can deal with the most urgent issues.

7. New Business: None

8. Neighborhood Council Coordinator's Report

Emily Habib informed the Executive Board that the next recruitment would open in early November 2016 and that there will be five openings for the term beginning on March 1, 2017.

9. Executive Board Member Comments

Tracy Fessler asked Executive Board members to email her ideas for changes to the Simi Valley Library programs so that she could report to the Library's Strategic Planning Committee.

Robert Sherman reported to the Executive Board that the Joint Chairs Committee nominated Howard Globber as the Neighborhood Council representative to the Community Development Block Grant Advisory Committee and that procedures for running a professional meeting were discussed. He also informed them that the Rotary Club of Simi Sunset will host a Trick 'r Treat in the Park and Howl-O-Ween Pooch Parade on Sunday October 30, 2016, from 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. at Rancho Tapo Community Park,

10. Adjournment: Thursday, November 10, 2016, 7:30 p.m.

**CITY OF SIMI VALLEY
MEMORANDUM**

Date: October 6, 2016

TO: Simi Valley Neighborhood Councils 1-4

FROM: Brent Siemer, Deputy Director/Development Services

SUBJECT: FLOOD DAMAGE PROTECTION ORDINANCE UPDATE

The City of Simi Valley Public Works Department has prepared a draft update to the City's Flood Damage Protection Ordinance. We will be presenting it to the various organizations for comment and input prior to bringing it to the City Council. These organizations include:

- Chamber of Commerce Economic Development Committee
- Building Industry Association
- Neighborhood Councils 1-4

The proposed Update to the Flood Damage Protection Ordinance will codify existing City policy and procedure; provide evidence of higher regulatory standards for floodplain management; and help the City obtain higher flood insurance premium discounts for the entire community.

In 1991, the City joined the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and adopted the current flood damage protection ordinance enabling the City to provide its residents with NFIP flood insurance. Over the past 25 years, there have been no changes to the original ordinance.

In 1999, the City joined the Community Rating System (CRS) program and received a 5% premium discount. Ten years later, the City expanded its program and became a Class 7 community, earning a 15% premium discount. This discount currently provides an annual savings of \$242,000 to 2,335 policy holders within our community.

In 2013, significant changes to the CRS program required the City to expand its program in order to maintain its current class level and premium discounts. During that recertification process, staff became aware of longstanding City processes and procedures that were not codified and could not be awarded CRS credit. These higher regulatory floodplain management standards are at the heart of the CRS program, but require ordinance authority to receive CRS credit.

The current draft of this proposed Ordinance was submitted to our Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for review and comment. Their preliminary tabulation of the CRS credits will increase the City to Class 5 for an additional 10% discount on flood insurance policies. This ordinance update equates to an additional annual savings of over \$163,000 giving the community a new total savings of \$405,000,000 per year.

FLOOD DAMAGE PROTECTION ORDINANCE UPDATE

Frequently Asked Questions

Why are these changes to the City's Flood Damage Protection Ordinance needed?

- The Ordinance does not reflect the higher regulatory standards of the City's current policies and practices
- The Ordinance no longer meets the minimum Federal and State standards.
- Flood insurance costs are rising. Congress has taken actions over the past two years to eliminate the preferential rates enjoyed by all of the property owners within the City's floodplain.

What are these changes?

- Floodplain management practices already followed by City staff
- Provisions for more detailed recordkeeping and flexible administration
- Mitigation of development flood impacts on neighborhoods and the community
- Limited to maximize CRS credit without impacting City resources

Who will be affected by these changes?

- Flood insurance policy holders will realize an additional 10% premium saving
- Minimum NFIP regulations will continue to apply to **all** existing structures
- City policies and procedures will continue to be applied.
- New developments will continue to mitigate their flood impacts

Flood Damage Protection Ordinance - Description of Amendments

Proposed Ordinance Text

Floodplain Management Objective

Article 1 - Statutory Authorization, Findings of Fact, Purpose and Methods

101. - Statutory Authorization
 Statement of Purpose. It is the purpose of this Chapter to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare, and to minimize public and private losses due to flood conditions in specific areas by legally enforceable regulations applied uniformly throughout the community to all publicly and privately owned land within flood prone, mudslide (i.e. mudflow) or flood related erosion areas. These regulations are designed to:

NFIP Minimum Requirements (This refers to text provided by the California Model Floodplain Management Ordinance for Noncoastal Communities (CMFM-NC) which fully meets National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) minimum requirements.)

Article 2 - Definitions

- 201. - Definitions
 "A zone" - see Special Flood Hazard Area.
- 201. - Definitions
 "Accessory structure" shall mean a structure that is either: (a) Solely for the parking of no more than two (2) cars; or (b) A small, low-cost shed for limited storage, less than 150 square feet and \$1,500 in value.
- 201. - Definitions
 "Adversely affect" shall mean the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated development, will increase the water surface elevation of the base flood beyond the tolerance of the flood model. This is considered to be one-tenth of one foot (0.1') or more at any point off-site of the property that is controlled by the project developer.
- 201. - Definitions
 "Apex" shall mean a point on an alluvial fan or similar landform below which the flow path of the major stream that formed the fan becomes unpredictable, and alluvial fan flooding can occur.
- 201. - Definitions
 "Area of special flood hazard" - see "Special Flood Hazard Area."
- 201. - Definitions
 "Barn" shall mean a structure designed and constructed to house animals, farm implements and other agricultural products. The structure shall not be a place of human habitation or a place of employment where agricultural products are processed, treated or packaged; nor shall it be a place used by the public.
- 201. - Definitions
 "Base Flood Elevation (BFE)" shall mean the elevation shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map for Zones AE, AH, A1-30, VE and V1-V30 that indicates the water surface elevation resulting from a flood that has a one percent (1%) or greater chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year.
- 201. - Definitions
 "Building" - see "Structure."
- 201. - Definitions
 "Certification" shall mean a certification by a registered professional engineer or other party and does not constitute a warranty or guarantee of performance, expressed or implied. Certification of data is a statement that the data is accurate to the best of the certifier's knowledge. Certification of analyses is a statement that the analyses have been performed correctly and in accordance with sound engineering practices. Certification of structural works is a statement that the works are designed in accordance with sound engineering practices to provide protection from the base flood. Certification of "as build" conditions is a statement that the structure(s) has been built according to the plans being certified, is in place, and is fully functioning.
- 201. - Definitions
 "City" shall mean the incorporated City of Simi Valley.

NFIP Minimum Requirements

NFIP Minimum Requirements

Higher Regulatory Standard - Studies must use future conditions hydrology to identify the cumulative effect of development. (FBR - See Sections 402.a.4 and 603.d; HSS - See Section 605.a)

NFIP Minimum Requirements

NFIP Minimum Requirements

Clarification - Definition of barn by use of the structure

NFIP Minimum Requirements

NFIP Minimum Requirements

Clarification - Defines the term "certification" which is used throughout the ordinance

Clarification - Defines "City" as used elsewhere in the ordinance

Flood Damage Protection Ordinance - Description of Amendments

Floodplain Management Objective

Proposed Ordinance Text

Ordinance Citation

201. - Definitions	"Commission" shall mean the Planning Commission of the City of Simi Valley, also called the "Board", "Board of Appeals", or the "Variance Board" in this Chapter.	Clarification - Defines "County" as used elsewhere in the ordinance
201. - Definitions	"County" shall mean the incorporated County of Ventura.	Clarification - Defines "County" as used elsewhere in the ordinance
201. - Definitions	"Critical facilities" shall mean that which is critical to the community's public health and safety, are essential to the orderly functioning of a community, store or produce highly volatile, toxic or water-reactive materials, or house occupants that may be insufficiently mobile to avoid loss of life or injury. For some activities and facilities, even a slight chance of flooding is too great a threat. Typical critical facilities include electric utilities, fire stations, emergency operation centers, police facilities, nursing homes, wastewater treatment facilities, water plants, gas/oil/propane storage facilities, hazardous waste handling and storage facilities, and other public equipment storage facilities.	Higher Regulatory Standard - Defines critical facilities. (See Sections 601.b, 601.c, 601.e and 603.e.9)
201. - Definitions	"Design flood" shall mean a hypothetical flood representing a specific likelihood of occurrence (for example the 100 year or 1% probability flood). The design flood may comprise two or more single source dominated floods.	Clarification - Defines the "Design flood" to be consistent with NFIP SFHA criteria
201. - Definitions	"Fill material" shall mean natural sand, dirt, soil, rock, concrete, cement, soil cement, brick or other similar material.	Clarification - Provides a more complete definition of "fill material"
201. - Definitions	"Flood Boundary and Floodway Map (FBFM)" shall mean the official map on which the Federal Emergency Management Agency or Federal Insurance Administration has delineated both the areas of special flood hazards and the floodway.	NFIP Minimum Requirements
201. - Definitions	"Floodplain management regulations" shall mean this Chapter and other zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations, building codes, health regulations, special purpose ordinances (such as grading and erosion control) and other application of police power which control development in flood-prone areas. This term describes Federal, State or local regulations in any combination thereof which provide standards for preventing and reducing flood loss and damage.	NFIP Minimum Requirements
201. - Definitions	"Freeboard" shall mean a margin of safety added to the BFE to account for waves, debris, miscalculations, lack of data, or changes in climate.	Codifies Current Policy - Defines "freeboard" and the purpose for it.
201. - Definitions	"Functionally dependent use" shall mean a use which cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is located or carried out in close proximity to water. The term includes only docking facilities, port facilities that are necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship building and ship repair facilities, and does <u>not</u> include long-term storage or related manufacturing facilities.	NFIP Minimum Requirements
201. - Definitions	"Future conditions flood hazard area" shall mean any area of future conditions flood hazard, the land area that would be inundated by the one-percent (1%) annual-chance flood based on future conditions hydrology.	Higher Regulatory Standard - Hydrological studies must use future conditions hydrology to identify the cumulative effect of development. (FBR - See Section 402.a.4, 603.d; HSS - See Section 605.a)
201. - Definitions	"Garage" shall mean a detached accessory building on the same lot as a dwelling or a portion of a main building for the housing of non-commercial vehicles of the occupants of the dwelling.	Clarification - Defines "garage" as a detached structure

Flood Damage Protection Ordinance - Description of Amendments

Floodplain Management Objective

Proposed Ordinance Text

NFIP Minimum Requirements

"Governing body" shall mean the local governing unit, i.e. county or municipality that is empowered to adopt and implement regulations to provide for the public health, safety and general welfare of its citizenry.

NFIP Minimum Requirements

"Hardship" as related to Section 7-5.801(e) of this Chapter means the exceptional hardship that would result from a failure to grant the requested variance. The City Council requires that the variance be exceptional, unusual, and peculiar to the property involved. Mere economic or financial hardship alone is not exceptional. Inconvenience, aesthetic considerations, physical handicaps, personal preferences, or the disapproval of one's neighbors likewise cannot, as a rule, qualify as an exceptional hardship. All of these problems can be resolved through other means without granting a variance, even if the alternative is more expensive, or requires the property owner to build elsewhere or put the parcel to a different use than originally intended.

"Increased cost of compliance" shall mean a flood insurance claim provision that helps fund the cost of bringing a flood-damaged building into compliance with floodplain management standards.

"Levee maintenance" shall mean routine activities to preserve the operating condition or operating elevation of a levee as established in a Final Notification issued by the Floodplain Administrator pursuant to Section 7-5.514. These activities include and are limited to (a) Extermination of burrowing rodents and filling burrows; (b) Shaping the levee crown; (c) Repairing access or patrol roads; (d) Repairing minor slips, erosion, or subsidence of a levee section; (e) Removing drift deposits, debris, and litter from the levee and berm; (f) Cleaning drains and toe ditches adjacent to the landside levee toe; (g) Cutting, removing, trimming, burning, spraying, and mowing vegetation; (h) Repairing or restoring rock protection; (i) Removing encroachments; or (j) Placing fill to restore the operating elevation of a levee.

"Levee system" shall mean a flood protection system which consists of a levee, or levees, and associated structures, such as closure and drainage devices, which are constructed and operated in accord with sound engineering practices.

"Lowest floor" shall mean the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area including basement. (See "Basement" definition) (a) An unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access or storage, provided it does not meet the definition of "basement," is not considered a building's lowest floor provided it conforms to applicable non-elevation design requirements, including, but not limited to: (1) The flood openings standard in Section 7-5.603(3)(5); (2) The anchoring standards in Section 7-5.603(a); (3) The construction materials and methods standards in Section 7-5.603(b); and (4) The standards for utilities in Section 7-5.604. (b) For residential structures, all subgrade enclosed areas are prohibited as they are considered to be basements (see "Basement" definition). This prohibition includes below-grade garages and storage areas.

Higher Regulatory Standard - Defines the regulatory language that qualifies properties for Increased Cost of Compliance insurance coverage for repetitive losses.

Clarification - Defines all activities that shall be considered to be maintenance of levees

NFIP Minimum Requirements

NFIP Minimum Requirements

Flood Damage Protection Ordinance - Description of Amendments

Ordinance Citation	Proposed Ordinance Text	Floodplain Management Objective
201. - Definitions	<p>"Market value" shall be determined by estimating the cost to replace the structure in new condition and adjusting that cost figure by the amount of depreciation which has accrued since the structure was constructed. (a) The cost of replacement of the structure shall be based on a square foot cost factor determined by reference to a building cost estimating guide recognized by the building construction industry. (b) The amount of depreciation shall be determined by taking into account the age and physical deterioration of the structure and functional obsolescence as approved by the Floodplain Administrator, but shall not include economic or other forms of external obsolescence. (c) Use of replacement costs or accrued depreciation factors different from those contained in recognized building cost estimating guides may be considered only if such factors are included in a report prepared by an independent professional appraiser and supported by a written explanation of the differences. See Section 7-5.402(b)(1).</p>	<p>Higher Regulatory Standard - State Recommended Higher Regulatory Standard. Defined market value for substantial damage/improvement calculations. (See Section 402.b)</p>
201. - Definitions	<p>"Mean sea level" shall mean the National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929, North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988 or other datum, to which base BFEs shown on the City's Flood Insurance Rate Map are referenced.</p>	<p>NFIP Minimum Requirements - Updated Datum</p>
201. - Definitions	<p>"New construction" shall mean structures for which the "start of construction" commenced on or after September 12, 1991, and includes any subsequent improvements to such structures.</p>	<p>NFIP Minimum Requirements - Date of original implementing ordinance</p>
201. - Definitions	<p>"New manufactured home park or subdivision" shall mean a manufactured home park or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed, including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads, is completed on or after September 12, 1991.</p>	<p>NFIP Minimum Requirements - Date of original implementing ordinance</p>
201. - Definitions	<p>"Person" shall mean any individual, corporation, partnership, association of any type, public agency or any other legal entity.</p>	<p>Clarification - Defines "person" as used elsewhere in the ordinance</p>
201. - Definitions	<p>"Program deficiency" shall mean a defect in a community's floodplain management regulations or administrative procedures that impairs effective implementation of those floodplain management regulations.</p>	<p>Clarification - Defines "program deficiency" for the purposes of NFIP implementation</p>
201. - Definitions	<p>"Reasonably safe from flooding" shall mean base flood waters will not inundate the land or damage structures to be removed from the SFHA and that any subsurface waters related to the base flood will not damage existing or proposed structures.</p>	<p>Clarification - Defines "reasonably safe from flooding" for the purposes of NFIP implementation</p>
201. - Definitions	<p>"Remedy a violation" shall mean to bring the structure or other development into compliance with State or local floodplain management regulations, or if this is not possible, to reduce the impacts of its noncompliance. Ways that impacts may be reduced include protecting the structure or other affected development from flood damages, implementing the enforcement provisions of this Chapter or otherwise deterring future similar violations, or reducing State or Federal financial exposure with regard to the structure or other development.</p>	<p>NFIP Minimum Requirements</p>
201. - Definitions	<p>"Repetitive loss" shall mean any insurable structure for which two or more claims of more than \$1,000 were paid by the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) within any rolling ten-year period since 1978.</p>	<p>Higher Regulatory Standard - Defined market value for substantial damage/improvement calculations.</p>
201. - Definitions	<p>"Riverine" shall mean relating to, formed by, or resembling a river (including tributaries), stream, brook, etc.</p>	<p>NFIP Minimum Requirements</p>

Flood Damage Protection Ordinance - Description of Amendments

Floodplain Management Objective

Proposed Ordinance Text

Ordinance Citation

201. - Definitions	"Sheet flow area" - see "Area of shallow flooding."	NFIP Minimum Requirements
201. - Definitions	"Substantial damage" shall mean: (a) Damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of restoring the structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed fifty percent (50%) of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred; or (b) Flood-related damages sustained by a structure on two separate occasions during a ten-year period for which the cost of repairs at the time of each such event, on the average, equals or exceeds 25 percent of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred. This is also known as "repetitive loss."	Higher Regulatory Standard - Defines new City procedure to track all building permit activity for a period of 10 years to determine substantial damage. Also defines "repetitive loss" for purposes of "Increased Cost of Compliance."
201. - Definitions	"Substantial improvement" shall mean any combination of repairs, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other improvement of a structure taking place within a ten (10) year period, the cost of which equals or exceeds fifty (50) percent of the market value of the structure before the "start of construction" of the improvement. For each structure, the ten (10) year period begins on the date of the first improvement or repair of that structure subsequent to the date of this regulation. When the combined total of all improvements or repairs made after the adoption of this regulation equals or exceeds 50 percent of a structure's market value, that structure is considered to be substantially improved. This term includes structures which have incurred "substantial damage," regardless of the actual repair work performed. The term does not, however, include either: (a) Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of State or local health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions; or (b) Any alteration of a "historic structure," provided that the alteration will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a "historic structure."	Higher Regulatory Standard - Initiates new City procedure to track all building permit activity for a period of 10 years to determine substantial improvement. (See Sections 402.a.1, 402.b, 402.k, 603.b.1, 603.c, 603.d.2 and 609.c)

201. - Definitions	"Violation" shall mean the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with this Chapter. A structure or other development without the elevation certificate, other certifications, or other evidence of compliance required in this Chapter is presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided.	NFIP Minimum Requirements
--------------------	--	----------------------------------

Article 3 - General Provisions

308.a - General Provisions	Violation of any of the provisions of this title following notice to the permittee by the Floodplain Administrator advising of the violation and ordering a cessation thereof, shall constitute a misdemeanor.	Revised Procedural Standard - Integrates City's Building Code language
308.b	Violation of any of the provisions of this title may be remedied by injunction or other civil proceeding commenced in the name of the City pursuant to direction by the City Council.	Revised Procedural Standard - Integrates City's Building Code language
308.c	It shall be a violation of this Chapter to fail to obtain a Floodplain Development Permit when required hereby to do so.	Revised Procedural Standard - Integrates City's Building Code language

Flood Damage Protection Ordinance - Description of Amendments

Floodplain Management Objective

Revised Procedural Standard - Integrates City's Building Code language

Proposed Ordinance Text

Any person violating any of the provisions of this Chapter shall be deemed guilty of an infraction or misdemeanor subject to all the provisions of Chapter 2 of Title 1 of the City of Simi Valley Municipal Code. Each such person shall be deemed guilty of a separate offense for each and every day or portion thereof during which any violation of any of the provisions of this title is committed, continued, or allowed and upon conviction of such violation such person shall be punishable by a fine or imprisonment or both as provided by law and Chapter 2 of Title 1 of the City of Simi Valley Municipal Code. The issuance of a permit or the approval of plans and specifications shall not be construed to authorize any violation of the provisions of this title or any codes hereby adopted by reference, or applicable state or federal law. The issuance or granting of a permit or approval of plan and specification shall not prevent the Floodplain Administrator from thereafter requiring the correction of errors in said plans and specifications or from suspending construction operations when such plans, specification or construction are in violation of this title or any codes hereby adopted by reference, or other applicable state or federal law.

There are many ordinances and other laws applicable to activities permitted under this Chapter which are not sought to be enforced under this permitting process. Such laws include, but are not limited to, building, land grading and erosion control, and land development measures. The issuance of a Floodplain Development Permit shall not be deemed to constitute a representation that the development so permitted or the property upon which such development is occurring complies with such other ordinances or other laws. Nor shall the existence of such an unrevoked permit be deemed to preclude any criminal or civil remedy for violation of such other ordinances or laws. The possession of a Floodplain Development Permit shall not be deemed to relieve the holder of the requirement to apply for or obtain any other license or permit required by ordinance or statute.

Clarification - Possession of a Floodplain Development Permit does not obviate any requirement to apply for or obtain any other license or permit.

Article 4 - Floodplain Administrator (Unless noted below, all text is included in the California Model Floodplain Management Ordinance for Non-Coastal Communities)

- 401 - Designation of the Floodplain Administrator
The Director of Public Works is hereby appointed to administer, implement, and enforce this Chapter by granting or denying development permits in accord with its provisions.
- 402.a.1
Permit requirements of this ordinance have been satisfied, including determination of substantial improvement and substantial damage of existing structures;
- 402.a.4
The proposed development does not adversely affect the carrying capacity of areas where Base Flood Elevations (BFEs) have been determined but a floodway has not been designated. This means that the cumulative effect of the proposed development when combined with all other existing and future conditions of development will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood by one-tenth of one foot (0.1') or more at any point within the City of Simi Valley;
- 402.a.6
Inspect all development projects to ensure compliance with all provisions of this ordinance, including proper elevation of the structure.
 - i. The first inspection is conducted when the site is staked out or otherwise marked.
 - ii. The second inspection is conducted when the lowest floor is built.
 - iii. The third inspection is conducted when the development is finished.
 - iv. Elevation Certificates shall be required prior to all inspections in a. through c. above.

Clarification - Relocates the Floodplain Administrator designation to this new Section.

Codifies Current Policy - Floodplain Administrator authority to conduct substantial improvement and substantial damage evaluations

Higher Regulatory Standard - Studies must use future conditions hydrology. This is consistent with the 2014 update to the City's Master Plan of Drainage. (See Section 605.a)

Higher Regulatory Standard - Requires review, approval and inspection of all proposed development projects within the floodplain by the Floodplain Administrator. Sets the stage for the Floodplain Administrator to approved as a Certified Floodplain Manager (CFM®) by the Association of State Floodplain Managers (ASFPM). Specifies three inspections, fully meet all CRS criteria, to be required for each permitted development project in the regulatory floodplain.

Flood Damage Protection Ordinance - Description of Amendments

Ordinance Citation

Proposed Ordinance Text

Floodplain Management Objective

402.b Development of Substantial Improvement and Substantial Damage Procedures.
 1. Using FEMA publication FEMA 213, "Answers to Questions About Substantially Damaged Buildings," develop detailed procedures for identifying and administering requirements for substantial improvement and substantial damage, to include defining "Market Value."
 2. Assure procedures are coordinated with other departments/divisions and implemented by community staff

Codifies FEIMA Procedure - Conducting substantial improvement and substantial damage evaluations.

402.h Agreements. Execute and record non-conversion and hold harmless agreements.

Revised Procedural Standard - Gives the Floodplain Administrator authority to and record non-conversion and hold harmless agreements.

402.k To ensure that the areas below the BFE shall be used solely for parking vehicles, limited storage, or access to the building and not be finished for use as human habitation without first becoming fully compliant with this Chapter in effect at the time of conversion, the Floodplain Administrator shall:
 1. Determine which applicants for new construction and/or substantial improvements have fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor that are 5 feet or higher.
 2. Enter into a "NON-CONVERSION AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION WITHIN FLOOD HAZARD AREAS" or equivalent with the City of Simi Valley. The agreement shall be recorded with the Ventura County Recorder as a deed restriction. The non-conversion agreement shall be in a form acceptable to the Floodplain Administrator and City Attorney and have the authority to inspect any area of a structure below the base flood elevation to ensure compliance upon prior notice of at least 72 hours.

Higher Regulatory Standard - State Recommended Higher Regulatory Standard. Prohibition of any building enclosures, including breakaway walls, below the BFE. Requirement for deed restriction to prevent conversion of areas below the BFE and to allow inspection.

Article 5 - Floodplain Development Permits (Unless noted below, all text is included in the California Model Floodplain Management Ordinance for Non-Coastal Communities)

501.f.2 The proposed development will not adversely affect the carrying capacity of areas where BFEs have been determined, but a floodway has not been designated. For purposes of this Chapter, "adversely affect" means that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated development, will increase the water surface elevation of the base flood more than one-tenth of one foot (0.1') at any point within the City of Simi Valley.

Higher Regulatory Standard - Expansion of the "adverse effect" definition to include cumulative impact of existing AND anticipated development (Full Buildout).

503. - Issuance The Floodplain Development Permit shall be issued by the Floodplain Administrator within a reasonable time after all information requested on the application form for floodplain development and any additional information requested by the Floodplain Administrator has been received.

Clarification - Obligates issuance of a Floodplain Development Permit within a reasonable time after the application is considered complete

504. Content of Permit The Floodplain Development Permit shall include, but not be limited to, a complete description of the activity for which it is issued, the property for which it is issued, the date of issuance, the date of expiration, and a description of any and all conditions upon which the permit has been issued. The permit shall be kept at the site during the development for which the permit was issued.

Clarification - Describes the minimum information to be contained within a Floodplain Development Permit and its posting onsite.

505.a The Floodplain Administrator may at the time of issuance of the Floodplain Development Permit impose such conditions as are necessary to ensure compliance with this title, other City ordinances, or State or Federal laws, including the dedication of easements or construction of improvements pursuant to Section 7-5-506. Such conditions shall be reasonably related to the public needs created by the development. Conditions to mitigate environmental impacts of the activity may also be imposed by the Floodplain Administrator.

Revised Procedural Standard - Gives the Floodplain Administrator authority impose such conditions as are necessary to ensure compliance with this ordinance.

Flood Damage Protection Ordinance - Description of Amendments

Proposed Ordinance Text

Floodplain Management Objective

Ordinance Citation

505.b	<p>The Floodplain Administrator may also require that the owner of the property, the permit applicant, or both, enter into a written agreement with the City holding the City of Simi Valley free from liability for any harm that may occur to any real or personal property or person by flooding.</p>	<p>Revised Procedural Standard - Gives the Floodplain Administrator authority impose such conditions as are necessary to ensure compliance with this ordinance.</p>
505.c	<p>Any condition imposed shall be embodied, together with the reasons therefore, in the Floodplain Development Permit.</p>	<p>Clarification - Conditions of approval for a Floodplain Development Permit shall include the reasons for those conditions.</p>
506.a	<p>The Floodplain Administrator may impose, as a condition for the granting of a permit, the requirement of dedication or irrevocable offer of dedication of real property within the property for which the approval is sought, for drainage, floodplain or floodway easements. Such dedication requirement must be reasonably related to the public needs arising as a result of the development.</p>	<p>Revised Procedural Standard - Gives the Floodplain Administrator authority impose such conditions as are necessary to ensure compliance with this ordinance.</p>
506.b	<p>The Floodplain Administrator may impose, as a condition for the granting of a permit, the requirement for the construction of drainage and flood control facilities. Such construction requirement must be reasonably related to the public needs arising as a result of the development.</p>	<p>Revised Procedural Standard - Gives the Floodplain Administrator authority impose such conditions as are necessary to ensure compliance with this ordinance.</p>
507.a	<p>In SFHAs, the Floodplain Administrator shall require a letter of conditional approval (Conditional Letter of Map Revision, CLOMR) be obtained from FEMA for any development that will cause measurable impact on the BFE on upstream or adjacent properties within a SFHA. The CLOMR must be received by the Floodplain Administrator prior to any grading or development within the floodplain, and the Letter of Map Revision must be approved by FEMA before start of construction.</p>	<p>Codifies Current Policy - FEMA approval of Letters of Map Change (LOMC) are currently required prior to construction.</p>
507.b	<p>All new development within Zones AE or AH that will alter or relocate a floodway, or is dependent upon construction of a levee, shall obtain conditional approval (or a "CLOMR") from the Federal Emergency Management Agency prior to issuance of a Floodplain Development Permit.</p>	<p>Codifies Current Policy - FEMA approval of Letters of Map Change (LOMC) are currently required prior to issuance of a Floodplain Development Permit.</p>
507.c	<p>All new development within Zone A shall provide a BFE data to the Floodplain Administrator.</p>	<p>Higher Regulatory Standard - All subdivisions of land within Zone A will require a hydrological study to produce a BFE.</p>
508.a	<p>Floodplain Development Permit shall be effective on the date of issuance and shall remain in force for one year, unless suspended or revoked by the Floodplain Administrator or voluntarily relinquished by the permittee.</p>	<p>Clarification - Flood Development Permits do not currently terminate; however, development entitlement applications do. This brings FDPs in line with building permit termination.</p>
508.b	<p>Before the expiration of a permit, a permittee may apply for an extension of time in which to complete the development.</p>	<p>Revised Procedural Standard - The current code does not provide any method to extend the term of the Flood Development Permit.</p>
508.c	<p>The Floodplain Administrator may extend the time for action by the permittee for a period not exceeding one hundred eighty (180) days upon payment of appropriate fees and a written request by the permittee showing that circumstances beyond the control of the permittee have prevented action from being taken.</p>	<p>Revised Procedural Standard - The current code does not provide any method to extend the term of the Flood Development Permit.</p>
508.d	<p>Permits shall not be extended more than once, except that the Floodplain Administrator may approve additional extensions of one hundred and eighty (180) days when the applicant demonstrates that special unusual circumstances exist. In this case, the Floodplain Administrator may require that additional fees be paid and plans be revised to partially or fully comply with this Chapter.</p>	<p>Revised Procedural Standard - The current code does not provide any method to extend the Flood Development Permit.</p>

Flood Damage Protection Ordinance - Description of Amendments

Floodplain Management Objective

Proposed Ordinance Text

Ordinance Citation

509. Transferability	A Floodplain Development Permit shall not be transferred or assigned from one person to another unless approved by the Floodplain Administrator and the person to whom the permit is to be transferred agrees to comply with the requirements of the original permit and to any conditions imposed therein.	Revised Procedural Standard - The current code does not provide any method to transfer the development rights of a Flood Development Permit.
510. Amendment of Permit	Any proposed changes in the development authorized by the permit shall be submitted to the Floodplain Administrator for review. The permittee shall not undertake or allow development to occur which does not conform to the plans or conditions of the original permit, unless approved by the Floodplain Administrator. The Floodplain Administrator shall review any proposed changes in the same manner and pursuant to the same standards as the original application.	Higher Regulatory Standard - The current code does not preclude an applicant from modifying the plan of development after issuance of a Flood Development Permit. (See Section 511, Inspection)
511. Inspection	The Floodplain Administrator, or his designee, has the right to enter and inspect any property for which a Floodplain Development Permit has been applied to perform any duties or responsibilities imposed by this Chapter to determine applicability or compliance with this Chapter. The Floodplain Administrator may also inspect any and all property for which a permit has been issued and on which development is occurring.	Higher Regulatory Standard - Allows periodic post-construction re-inspections of buildings to ensure that they continue to comply with all floodplain management requirements of their earlier permits.
512. Grounds for Suspension and Revocation	Any Floodplain Development Permit issued pursuant to this Chapter may be suspended during its term upon one or more of the following grounds: (a) The physical state of the property differs from the descriptions, plans, or information furnished to the Floodplain Administrator in the permit application; (b) The development does not conform to the conditions or terms of the permit; or (c) The development is in violation of this Chapter, other City ordinances, or State or Federal laws.	Higher Regulatory Standard - Provides grounds for suspension and revocation of a Flood Development Permit. (See Section 511, Inspection)
513.a. Method of Suspension or Revocation	The Floodplain Administrator may suspend or revoke a Floodplain Development Permit by issuing a notice of suspension or revocation, stating the reasons therefore, and serving same upon the permittee. If such an appeal is filed, the suspension or revocation shall remain in force and be effective until a final decision on the appeal is issued by the Board of Appeals.	Higher Regulatory Standard - Provides grounds for suspension and revocation of a Flood Development Permit. (See Section 511, Inspection)
513.b	If the Floodplain Administrator suspends a permit, such permit may either be reinstated or revoked by the Floodplain Administrator, depending upon whether the permittee corrects the grounds stated for the suspension in the notice. If the permittee fails to remedy the grounds for suspension within a time period specified by the Floodplain Administrator, but in no event later than sixty (60) calendar days, the Floodplain Administrator shall revoke the permit.	Higher Regulatory Standard - Provides grounds for suspension and revocation of a Flood Development Permit. (See Section 511, Inspection)

Article 6 - Provisions for Flood Hazard Reduction

601.a - Prohibitions	New construction of any residential or nonresidential structures in special flood hazard areas.	Codifies Current Policy - New and substantially improved buildings have are prohibited in the SFHA . Such development has been required to fill and obtain FEMA removal from the SFHA. (Policy has been in place since the CRS application date.)
601.b	Storage or processing of hazardous, flammable or explosive materials in SFHAs	No Change - Hazardous storage prohibition within the SFHA is already included in the Flood Damage Prevention ordinance, but was overlooked in prior FEMA CRS credit reviews.
601.c	New and substantially improved critical facilities within SFHAs.	Higher Regulatory Standard - Prohibits all new critical facilities from being located within the SFHA.

Flood Damage Protection Ordinance - Description of Amendments

Ordinance Citation	Proposed Ordinance Text	Floodplain Management Objective
601.d	The change of use of non-conforming structures from a non-residential structure to a residential structure or a mixed-use structure, or an increase in the residential use area of a mixed-use structure.	Higher Regulatory Standard - Prohibits change of use of a non-conforming structure located within the SFHA that will increase residential use.
601.e	The change of use of any structure to a critical facility, where such a change in use will render the new critical facility in violation of Section 6.3.E.10, Critical Facilities.	Higher Regulatory Standard - Prohibits change of use of a structure located within the SFHA to a critical facility.
601.f	Basements with finished floor elevations below the Base Flood Elevation (BFE).	Higher Regulatory Standard - Prohibits basements from being located below the BFE within the SFHA.
601.g	Building enclosures, including breakaway walls, below the BFE.	Higher Regulatory Standard - Prohibits building enclosure from being located below the BFE within the SFHA.
601.h	Crawl spaces greater than two (2) feet below grade, which shall be considered as basements.	Higher Regulatory Standard - Further restricts crawl spaces that could be converted to basements.
601.i	Installation of new and substantially-improved septic systems.	Codifies Current Policy - Placement of septic systems within the SFHA is prohibited. (Policy has been in place since the CRS application date.)
602. Standards of Construction	Properties located outside the SFHA are still subject to potential flooding caused by local drainage problems. To ensure that new development is elevated well above the street level or otherwise protected from shallow drainage flooding the following standards are required for all development in all areas of the City:	Codifies the City's Master Plan of Drainage - Development is already required to mitigate existing and cumulative downstream deficiencies.
602.a	(a) These standards shall apply on all development exceeding one-half acre in size, and/or increasing impervious area by over 5,000 square feet.	Codifies Current Policy - All new development meeting these criteria, citywide, is required to mitigate stormwater runoff as prescribed.
602.b	The lowest floor elevation of any structures shall be at least one (1) foot above the crown of the nearest street.	Codifies Current Policy - All new development must be a minimum of 1-foot above the curb elevation. (Policy has been in place since the CRS application date.)
602.c	The site plan shall account for street flooding and local drainage from and onto adjoining properties and protects the building from local drainage flows.	Codifies Current Policy - All new development required to account for all drainage. (Policy has been in place since the CRS application date.)
602.d	The site plan shall provide positive drainage away from the building site to an approved point of collection that does not create a hazard or problem on neighboring properties.	Codifies Current Policy - all new development is required to provide positive drainage away from all structures. (Policy has been in place since the CRS application date.)
602.e.1&2	All requirements of the most current NPDES Stormwater Permit shall be enforced including, but not limited to: 1. Preference to the use of low-impact development techniques (instead of pipes, channels, or detention) to control the impacts of development on runoff. 2. Include in the design of the stormwater management facilities appropriate "best management practices" that will improve the quality of surface water.	Codifies City's NPDES MS4 Permit - Requires regulated development to give preference to the use of low-impact development techniques to control the impacts of development on runoff.

Flood Damage Protection Ordinance - Description of Amendments

Proposed Ordinance Text

Floodplain Management Objective

Ordinance Citation

602.e.3	<p>At least once each year, the owners of all stormwater management facilities including, but not limited to retention, detention, and debris basins and "best management practices" shall:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> a. Have the facilities inspected by a licensed professional engineer. b. Perform any and all maintenance recommended by the engineer; and c. Submit an annual inspection report to the Floodplain Administrator. d. If the owner fails to submit the annual inspection report or perform items (i), (ii) or (iii) above, the City shall have the authority to perform the inspection, maintenance repair and/or replacement and receive reimbursement from the owner for the work performed. 	<p>Higher Regulatory Standard - The City's NPDES MS4 Permit requires bi-annual inspection to assess post-construction operation of all stormwater facilities, treatment control and best management practices. This regulation now requires the same inspection on an annual basis.</p>
602.f	<p>For all new development, the maximum storm water discharge of the 10, 25, 50 and 100-year storms, shall be limited to the pre-developed condition or calculated developed (future condition) 10-year peak flow rate, whichever is the lesser.</p>	<p>Codifies the City's Master Plan of Drainage - Requires all subdivision, planned-unit development, and other permit approval (except single-family residences) to ensure that post-development stormwater discharges do not exceed the amount of runoff under pre-development conditions. Requires detention to be designed for the 10, 25, 40 and 100-year storm. This is consistent with FEMA design standards.</p>
602.f.1	<p>Before development, the developer must submit hydrologic and hydraulic studies showing the nature and extent of runoff under present conditions and with the proposed development for those three rainfall events. Peak runoff from new development shall be no greater than the runoff from the site in its pre-development condition.</p>	<p>Higher Regulatory Standard - Reduces the allowed runoff to pre-development condition.</p>
602.f.3	<p>For projects of or greater than ten (10) acres, the required detention storage shall be based on a calculated hydrograph for a developed 100-year frequency storm.</p>	<p>Codifies the City's Master Plan of Drainage - Calculated detention storage is already required for projects greater than 10 acres.</p>
602.f.4	<p>Additional detention may be considered for reduction of the discharge rate commensurate with deficiencies in downstream facilities.</p>	<p>Codifies the City's Master Plan of Drainage - Development is already required to mitigate existing downstream deficiencies.</p>
603.b.1 - Standards of Construction Within the SFHA	<p>All new construction and substantial improvements of structures, including manufactured homes, shall be constructed:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> 1. With electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and air conditioning equipment and all other mechanical systems and service facilities located at least one (1) foot above the BFE; 	<p>Codifies Current Policy - All substantially improved structures (includes repair of substantial damage) will be considered as "new construction" and must be elevated above the BFE.</p>
603.b.1	<p>All new construction and substantial improvements of structures, including manufactured homes, shall be constructed:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> 1. With electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and air conditioning equipment and all other mechanical systems and service facilities located at least one (1) foot above the BFE; 	<p>Higher Regulatory Standard - Requires all electrical and mechanical equipment to be constructed 1 foot above the BFE.</p>
603.b.4	<p>Must be constructed on foundations that are designed and sealed by a registered design professional as complying with the requirements of the International Building Code, the International Residential Code, or ASCE 24.</p>	<p>Codifies Current Policy - All buildings are to be placed on compacted fill and protected from erosion and scour.</p>

Flood Damage Protection Ordinance - Description of Amendments

Floodplain Management Objective

Proposed Ordinance Text

Codifies Current Policy - All buildings are to be placed on compacted fill and protected from erosion and scour.

Ordinance Citation

The following standards apply to all fill activities in SFHAs:

1. Fill sites, upon which structures will be constructed or placed, must be compacted to 95 percent of the maximum density obtainable with the Standard Proctor Test method or an acceptable equivalent method;
2. Fill slopes shall not be steeper than one (1) foot vertical to two feet horizontal;
3. Fill shall extend at least ten (10) feet beyond the foundation of all structures before it drops below the BFE, unless certified to be resistant against erosion and scour;
4. Adequate protection against erosion and scour is provided for fill slopes. When expected velocities during the occurrence of the base flood are greater than five feet per second armorings with stone or rock protection shall be provided. When expected velocities during the base flood are five feet per second or less protection shall be provided by covering them with vegetative cover.
5. Fill shall be composed of clean granular or earthen material.
6. In any area that has been removed from the floodplain via a Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill, any existing or new structure, addition, or substantial improvement must meet the required elevation freeboard requirements.

603.c - Fill

603.d.2 - Elevation and Floodproofing, Residential Construction

All new construction or substantial improvements of residential structures shall have the lowest floor:

- i. In AE and AH Zones, elevated at least 1 foot above the base flood elevation.
- ii. In an AO zone, elevated above the highest adjacent grade to a height at least 1 foot above the depth number specified in feet on the FIRM, or elevated at least 2 feet above the highest adjacent grade if no depth number is specified.
- iii. In an A zone, without BFEs specified on the FIRM [unnumbered A zone], elevated at least one (1) foot above the BFE as determined under Section 7-5.402(c).

Codifies Current Policy - Supports the City's 1' freeboard requirement

603.d.2.iv.

New development proposals will be designed, to the maximum extent practicable, so residential building sites, walkways, driveways, and roadways are located on land with a natural grade with elevation not less than the BFE and with evacuation routes leading directly out of the floodplain area (dryland access).

Higher Regulatory Standard - Requires elevated access for all new development within the SFHA

603.d.3.i

Be floodproofed, together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, to at least 1 foot above the elevation recommended under Section 6.3.E.3, so that the structure is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water;

Codifies Current Policy - Supports the City's 1' freeboard requirement

603.d.3.iv

New development proposals will be designed, to the maximum extent practicable, so non-residential building sites, walkways, driveways, and roadways are located on land with a natural grade with elevation not less than the BFE and with evacuation routes leading directly out of the floodplain area.

Codifies Current Policy - New development is prohibited within the SFHA and must obtain a Letter of Map Change from FEMA removing the site from the SFHA

603.d.4 Non-Conversion

To put current and future tenants and owners on notice that the area below the BFE may not be architecturally finished and converted to living space and that the space may only be used as incidental material storage, building access and vehicle parking, a non-conversion agreement shall be required whenever there is a height of more than five feet. The non-conversion agreement shall be in a form acceptable to the Floodplain Administrator and City Attorney. The Floodplain Administrator shall have the right to inspect for conversion with 72-hour notice. By this Title, the Director of the Public Works shall have authority to execute the non-conversion agreements on behalf of the City of Simi Valley.

Revised Procedural Standard - Gives the Floodplain Administrator authority to execute the non-conversion agreements on behalf of the City of Simi Valley

Flood Damage Protection Ordinance - Description of Amendments

Floodplain Management Objective

Proposed Ordinance Text

Higher Regulatory Standard - Prohibits the conversion of areas into living spaces below the BFE.

Ordinance Citation

This sub-section applies to buildings with crawl spaces up two (2) feet below grade. Below-grade crawl space construction in accordance with the requirements listed below will not be considered basements.

- (i) The building must be designed and adequately anchored to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy. Crawl space construction is not allowed in areas with flood velocities greater than five (5) feet per second unless the design is reviewed by a qualified design professional, such as a registered architect or professional engineer;
- (ii) The crawl space is an enclosed area below the BFE and, as such, must have openings that equalize hydrostatic pressures by allowing for the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters. For guidance on flood openings, see FEMA Technical Bulletin 1-93;
- (iii) Portions of the building below the BFE must be constructed with materials resistant to flood damage. This includes not only the foundation walls of the crawl space used to elevate the building, but also any joists, insulation, or other materials that extend below the BFE; and
- (iv) Any building utility systems within the crawl space must be elevated at least one (1) foot above the BFE or designed so that floodwaters cannot enter or accumulate within the system components during flood conditions.
- (v) Requirements for all below-grade crawl space construction, in addition to the above requirements, to include the following:
 - (A) The interior grade of a crawl space below the BFE must not be more than two (2) feet below the lowest adjacent exterior grade (LAG), shown as D in figure 3 of Technical Bulletin 11-01;
 - (B) The height of the below-grade crawl space, measured from the interior grade of the crawl space to the top of the crawl space foundation wall must not exceed four (4) feet (shown as L in figure 3 of Technical Bulletin 11-01) at any point;
 - (C) There must be an adequate drainage system that removes floodwaters from the interior area of the crawl space within a reasonable period of time after a flood event, not to exceed 72 hours; and
 - (D) The velocity of floodwaters at the site should not exceed five (5) feet per second for any crawl space. For velocities in excess of five (5) feet per second, other foundation types should be used.

603.d.9.i - Critical Facilities

Critical Facilities
Construction of new critical facilities shall be located outside the limits of the 500-year floodplain.

Higher Regulatory Standard - Prohibits all new critical facilities from being located within the 500-year floodplain.

603.d.9.i.A

(A) Critical facilities constructed adjacent to the 500-year floodplain shall have the lowest floor elevated at least one (1) foot above the level of the 500-year flood.

Higher Regulatory Standard - Requires 1' freeboard adjacent to 500-year floodplain. Requires access routes to be elevated above the BFE.

603.d.9.ii

Non-substantial improvement to existing critical facilities within the SFHA shall have the lowest floor elevated at least one (1) foot above the level of the 500-year flood.

Higher Regulatory Standard - Requires 1' freeboard adjacent to 500-year floodplain. Requires access routes to be elevated above the BFE.

- (A) Access routes elevated to or above the level of the base flood elevation shall be provided to all critical facilities to the extent possible.
- (C) Access routes elevated to or above the level of the BFE shall be provided to all critical facilities to the extent possible.

603.d.9.ii.B

Flood-proofing and sealing measures must be taken to ensure that toxic substances will not be displaced by or released into floodwaters.

Codifies Current Policy

604 - Standards for Utilities

Changes for Section citation only.

NFIP Minimum Requirements - Already met

Flood Damage Protection Ordinance - Description of Amendments

Ordinance Citation	Proposed Ordinance Text	Floodplain Management Objective
605.a - Standards for Subdivisions and Other Proposed Development	<p>All new subdivisions proposals and other proposed development, including proposals for manufactured home parks and subdivisions greater than 1 acre shall:</p> <p>(1) Provide future conditions hydrologic and hydraulic engineering analysis to identify the 100-year, 500-year and floodway flood elevations and boundaries.</p> <p>(i) Analysis shall use the most recent aerial and LIDAR topography with a minimum 2 foot resolution.</p> <p>(ii) Analysis shall be consistent with the most current City Master Plan of Drainage models and future conditions hydrologic land use mapping.</p>	<p>Higher Regulatory Standard – Studies must use the most recent topo, future conditions hydrology and the 500-year elevations and floodplain boundary. This is consistent with the 2014 update to the City’s Master Plan of Drainage.</p>
605.d	<p>In areas upstream of the Limit of Study, as delineated on the community FIRM, where BFE data is not available, a floodplain study must be performed by a Professional Engineer (PE) establishing the BFE and the floodplain and floodway boundaries prior to issuing a development permit.</p>	<p>Codifies Current Policy - New development is not allowed within the floodplain. The LOMC that is required to remove the development from the SFHA will establish all necessary BFEs.</p>
605.e	<p>All proposed lots or parcels that will be future building sites shall have a minimum buildable area outside the natural (non-filled) one-percent (1%) chance annual floodplain. The buildable area shall be large enough to accommodate any primary structure and associated structures such as sheds, barns, swimming pools, detached garages, on-site sewage disposal systems, and water supply wells, if applicable.</p>	<p>Codifies Current Policy - New development is not allowed within the SFHA. The entire property must be removed.</p>
605.f	<p>Unless otherwise approved by the City Council, the following shall apply:</p> <p>(1) All street surfaces must be located at or above the base flood elevation.</p> <p>(2) Commercial and industrial development may not allow parking more than 1-foot below the base flood elevation.</p>	<p>Codifies Current Policy - Requires elevated access and limits the flooding of parking areas for all new development within the SFHA. However, new development is already precluded from the SFHA.</p>
606.a.1 - Standards for Manufactured Homes	<p>Within Zones AH and AE on the community’s Flood Insurance Rate Map, be elevated on a permanent foundation such that the lowest floor of the manufactured home is elevated at least one (1) foot above the BFE and be securely fastened to an adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement.</p>	<p>Codifies Current Policy - Supports the City’s 1’ freeboard requirement</p>
606.b.1	<p>(1) Lowest floor of the manufactured home is at least one (1) foot above the BFE;</p>	<p>Codifies Current Policy - Supports the City’s 1’ freeboard requirement</p>
607 - Standards for Recreational Vehicles	<p>No Changes</p>	<p>NFIP Minimum Requirements - Already met</p>
608 - Standards for the Storage of Materials and Equipment	<p>(a) In SFHAs, the storage or processing of materials that are, in time of flooding, buoyant, flammable, explosive, or could be injurious to human, animal, or plant life, is prohibited.</p> <p>(b) Storage of other material or equipment may be allowed if not subject to major damage by floods and firmly anchored to prevent flotation or if readily removable from the area within the time after flood warning.</p>	<p>Clarification - Describes existing hazardous storage prohibition within the SFHA.</p>
609.c - Floodways	<p>All new construction, substantial improvements, and other development within floodways which will cause increases in the BFE shall only be permitted if the Permittee has applied to the Federal Emergency Management Agency for modification of the flood insurance rate maps and has received conditional approval of such modifications, and all other applicable provisions of this Chapter are satisfied.</p>	<p>Codifies Current Policy - All new development is already precluded from the SFHA. (See Section 605.a)</p>

Flood Damage Protection Ordinance - Description of Amendments

Ordinance Citation	Proposed Ordinance Text	Floodplain Management Objective
609.d	If no floodway is identified, the applicant for a flood area development permit shall provide an engineering study to demonstrate that any new development will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood by more than one-tenth of one foot (0.1').	Higher Regulatory Standard - This hydrological study standard significantly reduces the allowed tolerance from one foot to one-then of one foot. (See Section 605.a)
610. Floodways Not Delineated	If no floodway is identified, the applicant for a flood area development permit shall provide an engineering study to demonstrate that any new development will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood by one-tenth of one foot (0.1') or more.	Higher Regulatory Standard - This hydrological study standard significantly reduces the allowed tolerance from one foot to one-then of one foot. (See Section 605.a)

Article 7 - Loading (no substantial changes required or proposed)

Article 8 - Variance Procedures

801.d. - Conditions for Variances

Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the "minimum necessary" considering the flood hazard, to afford relief. "Minimum necessary" means to afford relief with a minimum of deviation from the requirements of this Chapter. For example, in the case of variances to an elevation requirement, this means the Floodplain Administrator need not grant permission for the applicant to build at grade, or even to whatever elevation the applicant proposes, but only to that elevation which the Floodplain Administrator believes will both provide relief and preserve the integrity of this Chapter

Clarification - Provides additional criteria for the citation of "minimum necessary" as pertaining to the issuance of a variance

802. Nature of Variances

The issuance of a variance is for floodplain management purposes only. Insurance premium rates are determined by statute according to actuarial risk and will not be modified by the granting of a variance.

NFIP Minimum Requirements

The variance criteria set forth in this section of this Chapter are based on the general principle of zoning law that variances pertain to a piece of property and are not personal in nature. A variance may be granted for a parcel of property with physical characteristics so unusual that complying with the requirements of this Chapter would create an exceptional hardship to the applicant or the surrounding property owners. The characteristics must be unique to the property and not be shared by adjacent parcels. The unique characteristic must pertain to the land itself, not to the structure, its inhabitants, or the property owners.

It is the duty of the City to help protect its citizens from flooding. This need is so compelling, and the implications of the cost of insuring a structure built below the flood level are so serious that variances from the flood elevation or from other requirements in this Chapter are intended to be quite rare. The long-term goal of preventing and reducing flood loss and damage can only be met if variances are strictly limited. Therefore, the variance guidelines provided in this Chapter are detailed and contain multiple provisions that must be met before a variance can be properly granted. The criteria are designed to screen out those situations in which alternatives other than a variance are more appropriate.

Flood Damage Protection Ordinance - Description of Amendments

Floodplain Management Objective

Proposed Ordinance Text

Clarification - Incorporates City Building Code language to provide consistency between building permits and Flood Development Permits

Variances shall only be issued upon a:
 (1) Showing of good and sufficient cause;
 (2) Determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional "hardship" to the applicant; and
 (3) Determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, or extraordinary public expense, create a nuisance (see "Public safety and nuisance"), cause "fraud and victimization" of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances.

Clarification - Incorporates City Building Code language to provide consistency between building permits and Flood Development Permits

(a) A request for appeal may be taken only by filing a written notice of appeal with the Secretary of the Board no later than the tenth (10th) day after the date the Floodplain Administrator makes a written determination accepting, denying, or modifying a proposed application to this Chapter.
 (b) Each notice of appeal shall include:
 (1) A description of the work or improvements proposed to be made or done;
 (2) A description of the proposed location of the work or improvements;
 (3) The reasons, in detail, why:
 (i) The decision of the Floodplain Administrator should not be sustained; and
 (ii) The relief requested for should be granted.
 (c) An application for appeal shall be based on a claim that the true intent of this Chapter or the rules legally adopted thereunder have been incorrectly interpreted, the provisions of this Chapter do not fully apply, or an equally good or better form of construction is proposed.

Clarification - Incorporates City Building Code language to provide consistency between building permits and Flood Development Permits

(a) Should the Board render a decision contrary to that of the Floodplain Administrator, then the decision of Board shall be deemed the decision of the Floodplain Administrator.
 (b) The decision of the Board shall be final and conclusive.

Article 8 - Map Amendments

Higher Regulatory Standard - Hydrological studies must use future conditions hydrology to identify the cumulative effect of development. (FBR - See Sections 402.a.4, 603.d; HSS - See Section 605.a)

All map revisions and watershed studies shall include analyses based on future build-out conditions hydrology associated with anticipated watershed growth and land-use and land-cover changes. These future condition analyses shall be included on community floodplain maps and will serve as the basis for this regulation.

CHAPTER 5 - FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION

Article 1. - Statutory Authorization, Findings of Fact, Purpose and Methods

7-5.101 - Statutory Authorization. The Legislature of the State of California has in Government Code Sections 65302, 65560 and 65800 conferred upon local government units the authority to adopt regulations designed to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of their citizenry. [Therefore, the City Council of the City of Simi Valley does hereby adopt the following floodplain management regulations.](#)

7-5.102 - Findings of Fact.

(a) The flood hazard areas of the City are subject to periodic inundation which can result in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and relief, and impairment of the tax base - all of which adversely affect the public health, safety and general welfare.

(b) These potential flood losses are caused by the cumulative effect of obstructions in areas of special flood hazards which increase flood heights and velocities, and when inadequately anchored, damage uses in other areas. Uses that are inadequately floodproofed, elevated, or otherwise protected from flood damage also contribute to flood losses.

7-5.103 - Statement of Purpose. It is the purpose of this ~~chapter~~[Chapter](#) to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare, and to minimize public and private losses due to flood conditions in specific areas ~~by provisions designed by legally enforceable regulations applied uniformly throughout the community to all publicly and privately owned land within flood prone, mudslide (i.e. mudflow) or flood related erosion areas.~~ [These regulations are designed to:](#)

- (a) To protect human life and health;
- (b) To minimize expenditure of public monies for costly flood control projects;
- (c) To minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding and generally undertaken at the expense of the general public;
- (d) To minimize prolonged business interruptions;
- (e) To minimize damage to public facilities and utilities, such as water and gas mains, electric, telephone and sewer lines, streets, and bridges located in areas of special flood hazard;

(f) To help maintain a stable tax base by requiring that due regard be given to flood risk factors in floodplain development in order to minimize future flood blight areas;

(g) To ensure that potential buyers are notified that property is in an area of special flood hazard; and

(h) To ensure that those who occupy the areas of special flood hazard assume responsibility for their actions.

7-5.104 - Methods of Reducing Flood Losses. In order to accomplish its purposes, this ~~chapter~~Chapter includes methods and provisions for:

(a) Restricting or prohibiting uses which are dangerous to health, safety, and property due to water or erosion hazards, or which result in damaging increases in erosion or flood heights or velocities;

(b) Requiring that uses vulnerable to floods, including facilities which serve such uses, be protected against flood damage at the time of initial construction;

(c) Controlling the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural protective barriers which help accommodate or channel flood waters;

(d) Controlling fill, grading, dredging, and other development which may increase flood damage; and

(e) Preventing or regulating the construction of flood barriers which will unnaturally divert flood waters or which may increase flood hazards in other areas.

Article 2. - Definitions

7-5.201 - Scope. For the purposes of this ~~chapter~~Chapter only, words or phrases used in this ~~chapter~~Chapter shall be interpreted in order to give them the meaning they have in common usage and to give this ~~chapter~~Chapter its most reasonable application, unless specifically defined in this article.

[“A zone” - see Special Flood Hazard Area.](#)

[“Accessory structure” shall mean a structure that is either:](#)

[\(a\) Solely for the parking of no more than two \(2\) cars; or](#)

[\(b\) A small, low-cost shed for limited storage, less than 150 square feet and \\$1,500 in value.](#)

“Accessory use” shall mean a use which is incidental and subordinate to the principal use of the parcel of land on which it is located.

“Adversely affect” shall mean the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated development, will increase the water surface elevation of the base flood beyond the tolerance of the flood model. This is considered to be one-tenth of one foot (0.1’) or more at any point off-site of the property that is controlled by the project developer.

“Alluvial fan” shall mean a geomorphologic feature characterized by a cone or fan-shaped deposit of boulders, gravel, and fine sediments that have been eroded from mountain slopes, transported by flood flows, and then deposited on the valley floor, and which is subject to flash flooding, high velocity of flows, debris flows, erosion, sediment movement and deposition, and channel migration.

“Apex” shall mean a point on an alluvial fan or similar landform below which the flow path of the major stream that formed the fan becomes unpredictable, and alluvial fan flooding can occur.

“Appeal” shall mean a request for a review of the Floodplain Administrator's interpretation of any provision of this ~~chapter~~Chapter or a request for a variance.

“Area of shallow flooding” shall mean a designated AO or AH Zone on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM). The base flood depths range from one to three (3') feet; a clearly defined channel does not exist; the path of flooding is unpredictable and indeterminate; and velocity of flow may be evident. Such flooding is characterized by ponding or sheet flow.

“Area of special flood hazard” - see "Special Flood Hazard Area."

“Barn” shall mean a structure designed and constructed to house animals, farm implements and other agricultural products. The structure shall not be a place of human habitation or a place of employment where agricultural products are processed, treated or packaged; nor shall it be a place used by the public.

“Base flood” shall mean the flood having a one percent (1%) chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year.

“Base Flood Elevation (BFE)” shall mean the elevation shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map for Zones AE, AH, A1-30, VE and V1-V30 that indicates the water surface elevation resulting from a flood that has a one percent (1%) or greater chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year.

“Basement” shall mean any area of a structure having its floor below ground level on all sides.

"Building" - see "Structure."

"Certification" shall mean a certification by a registered professional engineer or other party and does not constitute a warranty or guarantee of performance, expressed or implied. Certification of data is a statement that the data is accurate to the best of the certifier's knowledge. Certification of analyses is a statement that the analyses have been performed correctly and in accordance with sound engineering practices. Certification of structural works is a statement that the works are designed in accordance with sound engineering practices to provide protection from the base flood. Certification of "as build" conditions is a statement that the structure(s) has been built according to the plans being certified, is in place, and is fully functioning.

"City" shall mean the incorporated City of Simi Valley.

"Commission" shall mean the Planning Commission of the City of Simi Valley, also called the "Board," "Board of Appeals," or the "Variance Board" in this Chapter.

"County" shall mean the incorporated County of Ventura.

"Critical facilities" shall mean that which is critical to the community's public health and safety, are essential to the orderly functioning of a community, store or produce highly volatile, toxic or water-reactive materials, or house occupants that may be insufficiently mobile to avoid loss of life or injury. For some activities and facilities, even a slight chance of flooding is too great a threat. Typical critical facilities include electric utilities, fire stations, emergency operation centers, police facilities, nursing homes, wastewater treatment facilities, water plants, gas/oil/propane storage facilities, hazardous waste handling and storage facilities, and other public equipment storage facilities.

"Design flood" shall mean a hypothetical flood representing a specific likelihood of occurrence (for example the 100 year or 1% probability flood). - The design flood may comprise two or more single source dominated floods.

"Development" shall mean any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations, or storage of equipment or materials. "Development" does not include flood control improvements constructed by the Ventura County Flood Control District.

"Encroachment" shall mean the advance or infringement of uses, plant growth, fill, excavation, buildings, permanent structures or development into a floodplain which may impede or alter the flow capacity of the floodplain.

"Existing manufactured home park or subdivision" shall mean a manufactured home park or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed, including at a minimum, the

installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads, is completed before the effective date of the floodplain management regulations adopted by the City.

“Expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision” shall mean the preparation of additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed, including, at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads.

“Fill” shall mean the placement of fill material at a specified location to bring the ground surface up to a desired elevation.

“Fill material” shall mean natural sand, dirt, soil, rock, concrete, cement, soil cement, ~~or brick~~ or other similar material.

“Flood, flooding, or flood water” shall mean a general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally dry land areas from: (1) the overflow of waters, (2) the unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source, and/or (3) mudflows which are proximately caused by flooding.

“Flood area development permit” shall mean the permit which must be obtained from the Floodplain Administrator prior to the start of any construction or development within any Special Flood Hazard Area.

“Flood Boundary and Floodway Map (FBFM)” shall mean the official map on which the Federal Emergency Management Agency or Federal Insurance Administration has delineated both the areas of special flood hazards and the floodway.

“Flood elevation determination” shall mean a determination by the Floodplain Administrator of the water surface elevation of the base flood.

“Flood elevation study” shall mean an examination, evaluation, and determination of flood hazards and, if appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations.

“Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM)” shall mean the official map on which the Federal Emergency Management Agency has delineated both the Special Flood Hazard Areas and the risk premium zones applicable to the City.

“Flood insurance study” shall mean the official report provided by the Federal Emergency Management Agency that includes flood profiles, the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and the water surface elevation of the base flood.

“Floodplain” or “flood-prone area” shall mean any land area susceptible to flooding.

“Floodplain administrator” shall mean the individual appointed to administer and enforce these floodplain management regulations.

“Floodplain management” shall mean the operation of an overall program of corrective and preventive measures for reducing flood damage.

“Floodplain management regulations” shall mean ~~this chapter~~Chapter and other zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations, building codes, health regulations, and special purpose ordinances (such as grading and erosion control) and other application of police power which control development in flood-prone areas. This term describes Federal, State or local regulations in any combination thereof which provide standards for preventing and reducing flood loss and damage.

“Flood protection system” shall mean those physical structural works for which funds have been authorized, appropriated, and expended, and which have been constructed in conformance with sound engineering practices, specifically to modify flooding in order to reduce the extent of the area within the City subject to a special flood hazard and the extent of the depths of associated flooding.

“Floodproofing” shall mean any combination of structural and nonstructural additions, changes, or adjustments to structures which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or improved real property, water and sanitary facilities, structures, and their contents.

“Floodway” shall mean the channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation more than one (1) foot. Also referred to as the "Regulatory Floodway."

“Floodway encroachment lines” shall mean the lines marking the limits of floodways on Federal, State and local floodplain maps.

“Floodway fringe” shall mean the areas of a floodplain on either side of the designated floodway where encroachment may be permitted.

“Fraud and victimization” refers to fraud or victimization of the public as it applies to the granting of a variance. The Planning Commission, acting as the Variance Board, shall consider the fact that every newly constructed building adds to government responsibilities and remains a part of the community for fifty (50) to one-hundred (100) years. Buildings that are permitted to be constructed below the ~~base flood elevation~~ BFE are subject during all those years to increased risk of damage from floods, while future owners of the property and the community as a whole are subject to all the costs, inconvenience, danger, and suffering that those increased flood damages bring. In addition, future owners may purchase the property, unaware that it is subject to potential flood damage, and can be insured only at very high flood insurance rates. The

Variance Board must find in granting a variance that it will not cause fraud on or victimization of the public.

“Freeboard” shall mean a margin of safety added to the BFE to account for waves, debris, miscalculations, lack of data, or changes in climate.

"Functionally dependent use" shall mean a use which cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is located or carried out in close proximity to water. The term includes only docking facilities, port facilities that are necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship building and ship repair facilities, and does not include long-term storage or related manufacturing facilities.

“Future conditions flood hazard area” shall mean any area of future conditions flood hazard, the land area that would be inundated by the one-percent (1%) annual-chance flood based on future conditions hydrology.

“Garage” shall mean a detached accessory building on the same lot as a dwelling or a portion of a main building for the housing of non-commercial vehicles of the occupants of the dwelling.

"Governing body" shall mean the local governing unit, i.e. county or municipality that is empowered to adopt and implement regulations to provide for the public health, safety and general welfare of its citizenry.

~~“Hardships” shall mean the difficulty to a property owner that would result from the failure to obtain a requested variance. The Planning Commission, acting as the Variance Board, shall require that the variance be exceptional, unusual, and peculiar to the property involved. Mere economic or financial hardship alone is not exceptional. Inconvenience, aesthetic considerations, physical handicaps, personal preferences, or the disapproval of one's neighbors likewise cannot, as a rule, qualify as exceptional hardships. All of these problems can be resolved through other means, without granting a variance. This is so even if the alternative means are more expensive or complicated than building with a variance, or if they require the property owner to put the parcel to a different use than originally intended, or to build elsewhere.~~

“Hardship” as related to Section 7-5.801(e) of this ~~chapter~~Chapter means the exceptional hardship that would result from a failure to grant the requested variance. The City Council requires that the variance be exceptional, unusual, and peculiar to the property involved. Mere economic or financial hardship alone is not exceptional. Inconvenience, aesthetic considerations, physical handicaps, personal preferences, or the disapproval of one's neighbors likewise cannot, as a rule, qualify as an exceptional hardship. All of these problems can be resolved through other means without granting a variance, even if the alternative is more expensive, or requires the property owner to build elsewhere or put the parcel to a different use than originally intended.

“Highest adjacent grade” shall mean the highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to construction next to the proposed walls of a structure.

“Historic structure” shall mean any structure that is: (a) listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places of the Department of the Interior or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National Register; (b) certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the historical significance of a registered historic district or a district registered historic district; (c) individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic preservation programs which have been approved by the Secretary of Interior; or (d) individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic preservation programs that have been certified either: (1) by an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior, or (2) Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states with approved programs.

“Increased cost of compliance” shall mean a flood insurance claim provision that helps fund the cost of bringing a flood-damaged building into compliance with floodplain management standards.

“Levee” shall mean a man-made structure designed and constructed in accordance with sound engineering practices to contain, control, or divert the flow of water in order to provide protection from temporary flooding.

“Levee maintenance” shall mean routine activities to preserve the operating condition or operating elevation of a levee as established in a Final Notification issued by the Floodplain Administrator pursuant to Section 7-5.514. These activities include and are limited to

- (a) Extermination of burrowing rodents and filling burrows;
- (b) Shaping the levee crown;
- (c) Repairing access or patrol roads;
- (d) Repairing minor slip-outs, erosion, or subsidence;
- (e) Removing drift deposits, debris, and litter;
- (f) Cleaning drains and ditches adjacent to the levee toe;
- (g) Cutting, removing, trimming, spraying, and mowing vegetation;
- (h) Repairing or restoring rock protection;
- (i) Removing encroachments; or

(j) Placing fill to restore the operating elevation of a levee.

“Levee system” shall mean a flood protection system which consists of a levee, or levees, and associated structures, such as closure and drainage devices, which are constructed and operated in accord with sound engineering practices.

“Lowest floor” shall mean the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area including basement. (See “Basement” definition)

(a) An unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access or storage, provided it does not meet the definition of "basement," is not considered a building's lowest floor, ~~as long as such enclosure is not built in a manner which would render the structure in violation of the applicable non-elevation design requirements of this chapter~~ provided it conforms to applicable non-elevation design requirements, including, but not limited to:

(1) The flood openings standard in Section 7-5.603(3)(5);

(2) The anchoring standards in Section 7-5.603(a);

(3) The construction materials and methods standards in Section 7-5.603(b); and

(4) The standards for utilities in Section 7-5.604.

(b) For residential structures, all subgrade enclosed areas are prohibited as they are considered to be basements (see “Basement” definition). This prohibition includes below-grade garages and storage areas.

“Manufactured home” shall mean a structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is built on a permanent chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when attached to the required utilities. The term "manufactured home" does not include a "recreational vehicle."

“Manufactured home park or subdivision” shall mean a parcel, or contiguous parcels, of land divided into two (2) or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale.

“Market value” shall be determined by estimating the cost to replace the structure in new condition and adjusting that cost figure by the amount of depreciation which has accrued since the structure was constructed.

(a) The cost of replacement of the structure shall be based on a square foot cost factor determined by reference to a building cost estimating guide recognized by the building construction industry.

(b) The amount of depreciation shall be determined by taking into account the age and physical deterioration of the structure and functional obsolescence as approved by the Floodplain Administrator, but shall not include economic or other forms of external obsolescence.

(c) Use of replacement costs or accrued depreciation factors different from those contained in recognized building cost estimating guides may be considered only if such factors are included in a report prepared by an independent professional appraiser and supported by a written explanation of the differences. See Section 7-5.402(b)(1).

“Map” shall mean the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for the City, issued by the Flood Insurance Administration, Federal Emergency Management Agency.

“Mean sea level” shall mean the National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929, North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988 or other datum, to which base ~~flood elevations~~ BFEs shown on the City’s Flood Insurance Rate Map are referenced.

“Minimum necessary” shall mean the least deviation from the requirements of this ~~chapter~~Chapter necessary to afford relief to the applicant of a variance and still maintain the integrity of this ~~chapter~~Chapter. In the case of variances to an elevation requirement for example, this means the Variance Board need not grant permission for the applicant to build at grade, or even to whatever elevation the applicant proposes, but only to that level that the Board believes will both provide relief and preserve the integrity of this ~~chapter~~Chapter.

“Mudslide” shall mean a condition where there is a river, flow or inundation of liquid mud down a hillside.

“New construction” shall mean structures for which the "start of construction" commenced on or after ~~the effective date of this chapter~~September 12, 1991, and includes any subsequent improvements to such structures.

“New manufactured home park or subdivision” shall mean a manufactured home park or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed, including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads, is completed on or after ~~the effective date of the ordinance codified in this chapter~~September 12, 1991.

“Obstruction” shall include, but is not limited to, any dam, wall, embankment, levee, dike, pile, abutment, protection, excavation, channelization, bridge, conduit, culvert, building, wire, fence, rock, gravel, refuse, fill, structure, vegetation or other material in, along, across or projecting into any watercourse to alter, impede, retard or change the direction and/or velocity of the flow of water, or due to its location, its

propensity to snare or collect debris carried by the flow of water or its likelihood of being carried downstream.

"One hundred year flood" or "100-year flood" shall mean a flood which has a one percent annual probability of being equaled or exceeded. It is identical to the "base flood," which is the term used throughout this ~~chapter~~Chapter.

"Person" shall mean any individual, corporation, partnership, association of any type, public agency or any other legal entity.

"Program deficiency" shall mean a defect in a community's floodplain management regulations or administrative procedures that impairs effective implementation of those floodplain management regulations.

"Principal structure" shall mean a structure used for a principal use of the property as distinguished from an "accessory use."

"Public safety and nuisances," as related to Section 7-5.801(e) of this ~~chapter~~Chapter, shall mean any threat to public safety or any nuisances created by the granting of a variance. This ~~chapter~~Chapter is intended to help protect the health, safety, well-being, and property of the local citizens. This is a long-range community-effort made up of a combination of approaches such as adequate drainage systems, warning and evacuation plans, and keeping new property above the flood levels. These long-term goals can only be met if exceptions to the requirements of this ~~chapter~~Chapter are kept to a bare minimum.

"Reasonably safe from flooding" shall mean base flood waters will not inundate the land or damage structures to be removed from the SFHA and that any subsurface waters related to the base flood will not damage existing or proposed structures.

"Recreational vehicle" shall mean a vehicle which is:

- (a) Built on a single chassis;
- (b) 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection;
- (c) Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck; and
- ~~(a)~~(d) Designed primarily not for use as a permanent~~;~~ dwelling but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use.

"Regulatory floodway" shall mean the channel of a river or other water~~-~~course and the adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation more than one (1) foot.

“Remedy a violation” shall mean to bring the structure or other development into compliance with State or local floodplain management regulations, or if this is not possible, to reduce the impacts of its noncompliance. Ways that impacts may be reduced include protecting the structure or other affected development from flood damages, implementing the enforcement provisions of this ~~chapter~~Chapter or otherwise deterring future similar violations, or reducing State or Federal financial exposure with regard to the structure or other development.

“Repetitive loss” shall mean any insurable structure for which two or more claims of more than \$1,000 were paid by the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) within any rolling ten-year period since 1978.

“Riverine” shall mean relating to, formed by, or resembling a river (including tributaries), stream, brook, etc.

“Sheet flow area” - see “Area of shallow flooding.”

“Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA)” shall mean an area having special flood hazards and shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) as Zone A, AO, AH or AE.

“Start of construction” shall include substantial improvement and other proposed new development and means the date the building permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement was within 180 days from the date of the permit. The actual start means either:

(a) The first placement of the permanent structure on a site, such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of excavation, or

(b) The placement of a manufactured home on a foundation.

(c) Permanent construction does not include:

(1) Land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling; and

(2) The installation of streets and/or walkways,

(3) Excavation for a basement, footings, piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary forms, or

(4) The installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure.

For a substantial improvement the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building.

“Structure” shall mean a walled and roofed building, including a gas or liquid storage tank that is principally above ground as well as a manufactured home.

“Substantial damage” shall mean:

(a) ~~D~~-damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of restoring the structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed fifty percent (50%) of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred; ~~or-~~

(b) Flood-related damages sustained by a structure on two separate occasions during a ten-year period for which the cost of repairs at the time of each such event, on the average, equals or exceeds 25 percent of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred. This is also known as “repetitive loss.”

“Substantial improvement” shall mean any combination of repairs, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other ~~proposed new development~~improvement of a structure taking place within a ten (10) year period, the cost of which equals or exceeds fifty (50) percent of the market value of the structure before the "start of construction" of the improvement. For each structure, the ten (10) year period begins on the date of the first improvement or repair of that structure subsequent to the date of this regulation. When the combined total of all improvements or repairs made after the adoption of this regulation equals or exceeds 50 percent of a structure's market value, that structure is considered to be substantially improved. This term includes structures which have incurred "substantial damage," regardless of the actual repair work performed. The term does not, however, include either:

(a) Aany project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of ~~state~~ State or local health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions; or

~~(a)(b)~~ ~~(b)~~ Aany alteration of a "historic structure," provided that the alteration will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a "historic structure."

“Variance” shall mean relief from the requirements of this ~~chapter~~Chapter which permits construction in a manner that would otherwise be prohibited by this ~~chapter~~Chapter.

“Violation” shall mean the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with this ~~chapter~~Chapter. A structure or other development without the elevation certificate, other certifications, or other evidence of compliance required in this

~~chapter~~Chapter is presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided.

“Variance board” shall mean the Planning Commission of the City in its role as the decision making body for requests for variances from the requirements of this ~~chapter~~Chapter.

“Water surface elevation” shall mean the height, in relation to the National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929, or other datum, where specified, of floods of various magnitudes and frequencies in the floodplains.

“Watercourse” shall mean a lake, river, creek, stream, wash, arroyo, channel or other topographic feature on or over which waters flow at least periodically. Watercourse includes specifically designated areas in which substantial flood damage may occur.

Article 3. - General Provisions

7-5.301 - Lands to Which this Chapter Applies. This ~~chapter~~Chapter shall apply to all Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHAs) within the jurisdiction of the City.

7-5.302 - Basis for Establishing the Areas of Special Flood Hazard. The ~~Special Flood Hazard Areas~~SFHAs identified by the Federal Insurance Administration of the Federal Emergency Management Agency in the Flood Insurance Study dated September 27, 1991, and the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), dated September 27, 1991, and all subsequent amendments and/or revisions, are hereby adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this ~~chapter~~Chapter. This Flood Insurance Study and attendant mapping is the minimum area of applicability of this ~~chapter~~Chapter and may be supplemented by studies for other areas which allow implementation of this ~~chapter~~Chapter and which are recommended to the City Council by the Floodplain Administrator. The Flood Insurance Study and Flood Insurance Rate Maps are on file at the Department of Public Works, City Hall, 2929 Tapo Canyon Road, Simi Valley, California, ~~Department of Public Works~~.

7-5.303 - Compliance. No structure or land shall hereafter be constructed, located, extended, converted, graded or altered without full compliance with the terms of this ~~chapter~~Chapter and other applicable regulations. Violation of the requirements, including violations of conditions and safeguards established in connection with conditions, shall constitute a misdemeanor. Nothing herein shall prevent the City Council from taking such lawful action as is necessary to prevent or remedy any violation.

7-5.304 - Abrogation and Greater Restrictions. This ~~chapter~~Chapter is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing easements, covenants, or deed restrictions. However, where this ~~chapter~~Chapter and another chapter, easement,

covenant, or deed restriction conflict or overlap whichever imposes the more stringent restrictions shall prevail.

7-5.305 - Interpretation. In the interpretation and application of this ~~chapter~~Chapter, all provisions shall be:

- (a) Considered as minimum requirements;
- (b) Liberally construed in favor of the City Council; and
- (c) Deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under State statutes.

7-5.306 - Warning and Disclaimer of Liability. The degree of flood protection required by this ~~chapter~~Chapter is considered reasonable for regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. Larger floods can and will occur on rare occasions. Flood heights may be increased by man-made or natural causes. This ~~chapter~~Chapter does not imply that land outside the areas of special flood hazards or uses permitted within such areas will be free from flooding or flood damages. Nothing herein shall be construed to impose upon the City any duty or mandatory duty, under Government Code Section 815.6 or otherwise, to prevent damage from flood in the areas subject to this ~~chapter~~Chapter, nor shall this ~~chapter~~Chapter fall within the meaning of Evidence Code Section 669. This ~~chapter~~Chapter shall not create liability on the part of the City Council, any officer or employee thereof, or the Federal Insurance Administration, Federal Emergency Management Agency, for any flood damages that result from reliance on this ~~chapter~~Chapter or any administrative decision lawfully made thereunder.

7-5.307 - Severability. This ~~chapter~~Chapter and the various parts thereof are hereby declared to be severable. Should any section of this ~~chapter~~Chapter be declared by the courts to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the ~~chapter~~Chapter as a whole, or any portion thereof other than the section so declared to be unconstitutional or invalid.

7-5.308 - Violations.

(a) Violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter following fifteen (15) calendar days' notice to the permittee by the Floodplain Administrator advising of the violation and ordering a cessation thereof, shall constitute a misdemeanor. This subsection (a) does not affect the ability to prosecute violations at any time under other subsections of this Section 7-5.308 or other applicable law without such notice as either a misdemeanor or an infraction. All remedies under this Chapter are cumulative.

(b) Violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter may be remedied by injunction or other civil proceeding commenced in the name of the City pursuant to direction by the City Council.

(c) It shall be a violation of this ~~chapter~~Chapter to fail to obtain a Floodplain Development Permit when required hereby to do so.

(d) Any person violating any of the provisions of this Chapter shall be deemed guilty of an infraction or misdemeanor subject to all the provisions of Chapter 2 of Title 1 of the City of Simi Valley Municipal Code. Each such person shall be deemed guilty of a separate offense for each and every day or portion thereof during which any violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter is committed, continued, or allowed and upon conviction of such violation such person shall be punishable by a fine or imprisonment or both as provided by law and Chapter 2 of Title 1 of the City of Simi Valley Municipal Code. The issuance of a permit or the approval of plans and specifications shall not be construed to authorize any violation of the provisions of this Chapter or any codes hereby adopted by reference, or applicable state or federal law. The issuance or granting of a permit or approval of plan and specification shall not prevent the Floodplain Administrator from thereafter requiring the correction of errors in said plans and specifications or from suspending construction operations when such plans, specification or construction are in violation of this Chapter or any codes hereby adopted by reference, or other applicable state or federal law.

7-5.309 — No Representation Regarding Other Laws. There are many ordinances and other laws applicable to activities permitted under this Chapter which are not considered in this permitting process. Such laws include, by way of example but not limited to, building, land grading and erosion control, and land development measures. The issuance of a Floodplain Development Permit shall not be deemed to constitute a representation that the development so permitted or the property upon which such development is occurring complies with any other ordinances or other laws. Nor shall the existence of such an unrevoked permit be deemed to preclude any criminal or civil remedy for violation of such other ordinances or laws. The possession of a Floodplain Development Permit shall not be deemed to relieve the holder of the requirement to apply for or obtain any other license or permit required by any other ordinance ~~or~~, statute, regulation or law.

Article 4. - Floodplain Administrator

7-5.401 - Designation of the Floodplain Administrator. The Director of Public Works is hereby appointed to administer, implement, and enforce this ~~chapter~~Chapter by granting or denying development permits in accord with its provisions.

7-5.402 - Duties and Responsibilities of the Floodplain Administrator. The duties and responsibilities of the Floodplain Administrator shall include, but not be limited to the following:

(a) Permit Review. Review all development permits to determine:

(1) Permit requirements of this ~~chapter~~Chapter have been satisfied, including determination of substantial improvement and substantial damage of existing structures;

(2) The site is reasonably safe from flooding and that the Floodplain Development Permit requirements of this ~~chapter~~Chapter have been fully satisfied;

(3) All other required State and Federal permits have been obtained;

(4) The proposed development does not adversely affect the carrying capacity of areas where Base Flood Elevations (BFEs) have been determined but a floodway has not been designated. This means that the cumulative effect of the proposed development when combined with all other existing and future conditions of development will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood by one-tenth of one foot (0.1') or more at any point within the City of Simi Valley; and

(5) All Letters of Map Revision (LOMRs) for flood control projects are approved prior to the issuance of building permits. Building Permits must not be issued based on Conditional Letters of Map Revision (CLOMRs). Approved CLOMRs allow construction of the proposed flood control project and land preparation as specified in the "start of construction" definition.

(6) Inspect all development projects to ensure compliance with all provisions of this ~~chapter~~Chapter, including proper elevation of structures.

i. The first inspection shall be conducted when the site is staked out or otherwise marked.

ii. The second inspection shall be conducted when the lowest floor is built and completed.

iii. The third inspection shall be conducted when the development is finished.

iv. Elevation Certificates shall be required prior to all inspections.

(b) Development of Substantial Improvement and Substantial Damage Procedures.

(1) Using FEMA publication FEMA 213, "Answers to Questions About Substantially Damaged Buildings," develop detailed procedures for identifying and administering requirements for substantial improvement and substantial damage, to include defining "Market Value."

(2) Assure procedures are coordinated with other Departments/Divisions and implemented by community staff.

(c) Review, Use and Development of Other Base Flood Data.

(1) When BFE data has not been provided in accordance with Section 7-5.302, the Floodplain Administrator shall obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any BFE and floodway data available from a Federal or State agency, or other source, in order to administer Section 6, or

(2) A BFE shall be obtained using one of two methods from the FEMA publication, FEMA 265, "Managing Floodplain Development in Approximate Zone A Areas – A Guide for Obtaining and Developing Base (100-year) Flood Elevations" dated July 1995.

(d) Notification of Other Agencies. Notification of other agencies shall be made as follows:

(1) Alteration or relocation of a watercourse:

i. Notify adjacent communities and the California Department of Water Resources prior to alteration or relocation;

ii. Submit evidence of such notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency; and

iii. Assure that the flood carrying capacity within the altered or relocated portion of said watercourse is maintained.

(2) BFE changes due to physical alterations:

i. Within six (6) months of information becoming available or project completion, whichever comes first, the Floodplain Administrator shall submit or assure that the permit applicant submits technical or scientific data to FEMA for a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR).

ii. All LOMRs for flood control projects are approved prior to the issuance of building permits. Building Permits must not be issued based on Conditional Letters of Map Revision (CLOMRs). Approved CLOMRs allow construction of the proposed flood control project and land preparation as specified in the "start of construction" definition.

Such submissions are necessary so that upon confirmation of those physical changes affecting flooding conditions, risk premium rates and floodplain management requirements are based on current data.

(3) Changes in corporate boundaries. Notify FEMA in writing whenever the corporate boundaries have been modified by annexation or other means and include a copy of a map of the community clearly delineating the new corporate limits.

(e) Documentation of Floodplain Development. Obtain and maintain for public inspection and make available as needed the following:

(1) Certification required by Section 7-5.603(e)(2) and Section 7-5.605 (lowest floor elevations);

(2) Certification required by Section 7-5.603(e)(3) (elevation or floodproofing of non-residential structures);

(3) Certification required by Sections 7-5.603(e)(5) (wet floodproofing standard);

(4) Certification of elevation required by Section 7-5.605(a)(3) (subdivisions and other proposed development standards);

(5) Certification required by Section 7-5.608(a) (floodway encroachments); and

(6) Maintain a record of all variance actions, including justification for their issuance, and report such variances issued in its biennial report submitted to the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

(f) Map Determination. Make interpretations where needed as to the exact location of the boundaries of the areas of special flood hazard where there appears to be a conflict between a mapped boundary and actual field conditions. The person contesting the location of the boundary shall be given a reasonable opportunity to appeal the interpretation as provided in Section 7-5.803(b).

(g) Remedial Action. Take action to remedy violations of this ~~chapter~~Chapter as specified in Section 7-5.303.

(h) Agreements. Execute and record non-conversion and hold harmless agreements.

(i) Biennial Report. Complete and submit Biennial Report to FEMA to provide information on the community floodplain management program and changes in its flood hazard areas, which assists FEMA to evaluate the effectiveness of a community's floodplain management activities.

(j) Planning. Assure that the General Plan is consistent with floodplain management objectives herein.

(k) Non-conversion of Enclosed Areas Below the Lowest Floor. To ensure that the areas below the BFE shall be used solely for parking vehicles, limited storage, or access to the building and not be finished for use as human habitation without first becoming fully compliant with the this ~~chapter~~Chapter in effect at the time of conversion, the Floodplain Administrator shall:

(1) Determine which applicants for new construction and/or substantial improvements have fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor that are five (5) feet or higher.

(2) Enter into a "NON-CONVERSION AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION WITHIN FLOOD HAZARD AREAS" or equivalent with the City of Simi Valley. The agreement shall be recorded with the Ventura County Recorder as a deed restriction. The non-conversion agreement shall be in a form acceptable to the Floodplain Administrator and City Attorney and have the authority to inspect any area of a structure below the BFE to ensure compliance upon prior notice of at least 72 hours.

Article 45. — Administration Floodplain Development Permits

7-5.401-501 - Establishment of Development Permit. A ~~flood~~Floodplain area ~~d~~Development pPermit (hereinafter "permit") shall be obtained before any construction or other development, including manufactured homes, begins within any Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) established in Section 7-5.302. Application for a Floodplain dDevelopment pPermit shall be made on forms furnished by the Floodplain Administrator and shall include, but not be limited to:

(a) ~~plans~~Plans in duplicate drawn to scale, including three hundred (300) feet surrounding and adjacent to the area in question, showing:

(1) ~~T~~The nature, location, dimensions, and elevation of the area in question;

(2) ~~existing~~Existing or proposed structures, ~~fill,~~ storage of materials and equipment drainage facilities; and the location;

(3) Proposed locations of water supply, sanitary sewer, and other utilities;

(4) Grading information showing existing and proposed contours, any proposed fill, and drainage facilities;

(5) Location of regulatory floodway when applicable;

(6) BFE information as specified in Section 7-5.302 or Section 7-5.402(c). When not provided according to said sections, the applicant shall provide, upon approval by the City for its use, the best available BFE data from a Federal or State agency or from a private engineering report;

~~(1) of the foregoing. Application for permits shall be made at the same time and reviewed in conjunction with other approvals for the development. The applicant shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Floodplain Administrator that all permit requirements of this chapter have been satisfied and that all other required state, federal and local permits have been obtained. The applicant shall also provide the following information:~~

~~(2)(7) Proposed evaluation elevation in relation to mean sea level of the lowest floor (including basement) of all structures. In Zone AO, the elevation of highest adjacent grade and proposed elevation of lowest floor of all structures; and~~

~~(3)(8) Proposed elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any non-residential structure will be floodproofed, as required in Section 7-5.603(e)(3) of this ~~chapter~~Chapter and detailed in FEMA Technical Bulletin TB 3-93Proposed elevation in relation to mean sea level for any structure which will be floodproofed.;~~

(b) Certification from a registered civil engineer or architect that the non-residential floodproofed building meets the floodproofing criteria in Section 7-5.603(e)(3).

(c) For a crawl space foundation, location and total net area of foundation openings as required in Sections 7-5.603(e)(5) and 7-5.603(e)(8) of this ~~chapter~~Chapter and detailed in FEMA Technical Bulletins 1-93 and 7-93.

~~(b)(d) All appropriate certifications listed in Sections 7-5-402(e) and 7-5.501; 7-5.503 and 7-5.504 of this ~~chapter~~Chapter;~~

(e) Description of the extent to which any watercourse will be altered or relocated as a result of proposed development.

~~(e) —~~

~~(1) — Proof that written notification, on forms furnished by the Floodplain Administrator, was sent prior to any alteration or relocation of the watercourse, to all adjacent communities, the California Department of Water Resources, and the Federal Insurance Administration, Federal Emergency Management Agency; and~~

(1) —

(2) Engineering data to demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the Floodplain Administrator, that the flood carrying capacity of the altered or relocated portion of the watercourse will be maintained;

(f) Engineering data to satisfy the following requirements:

(1) The site is reasonably safe from flooding as required by the provisions of this ~~chapter~~Chapter; and

(2) The proposed development will not adversely affect the carrying capacity of areas where base flood elevations-BFEs have been determined, but a floodway has not been designated. For purposes of this ~~chapter~~Chapter, "adversely affect" means that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated development, will increase the water surface elevation of the base flood more than one-tenth of one foot (0.1') ~~six (6) inches~~ at any point within the City of Simi Valley.;

~~(f) Base flood elevation data as provided in accordance with Section 7-5.302. When not provided according to said section, the applicant shall provide, upon approval by the City for its use, the best available base flood elevation data from a federal or state agency or from a private engineering report.~~

~~**7-5.402 – Designation of the Floodplain Administrator.** The Director of Public Works is hereby appointed to administer and implement this chapter by granting or denying flood area development permits in accordance with its provisions.~~

~~**7-5.403 – Duties and Responsibilities of the Floodplain Administrator.** The duties and responsibilities of the Floodplain Administrator shall be adopted by resolution of the City Council.~~

~~**7-5.404-502 - Fees.** Before a permit is issued, the applicant shall pay to the Floodplain Administrator the fees authorized by this section.~~

A schedule of fees shall be adopted by resolution of the City Council. Such fees will reimburse the City for costs incurred in responding in writing to requests about the flood hazard status of properties, the processing, investigation, renewal and modification of flood area development permits and for performing other work in the administration of this ~~chapter~~Chapter.

~~**7-5.503 - Issuance.** The Floodplain Development Permit shall be issued by the Floodplain Administrator within a reasonable time after all information requested on the application form for floodplain development and any additional information requested by the Floodplain Administrator has been received.~~

7-5.504 - Content of Permit. The Floodplain Development Permit shall include, but not be limited to, a complete description of the activity for which it is issued, the property for which it is issued, the date of issuance, the date of expiration, and a description of any and all conditions upon which the permit has been issued. The permit shall be kept at the site during the development for which the permit was issued.

7-5.505 - Conditions.

(a) The Floodplain Administrator may at the time of issuance of the Floodplain Development Permit impose such conditions as are necessary to ensure compliance with this Chapter, other City ordinances, or State or Federal laws, including the dedication of easements or construction of improvements pursuant to Section 7-5.506. Such conditions shall be reasonably related to the public needs created by the development. Conditions to mitigate environmental impacts of the activity may also be imposed by the Floodplain Administrator.

(b) The Floodplain Administrator may also require that the owner of the property, the permit applicant, or both, enter into a written agreement with the City holding the City of Simi Valley free from liability for any harm that may occur to any real or personal property or person by flooding.

(c) Any condition imposed shall be embodied, together with the reasons therefore, in the Floodplain Development Permit.

7-5.506 - Dedications and Improvements.

(a) The Floodplain Administrator may impose, as a condition for the granting of a permit, the requirement of dedication or irrevocable offer of dedication of real property within the property for which the approval is sought, for drainage, floodplain or floodway easements. Such dedication requirement must be reasonably related to the public needs arising as a result of the development.

~~(a)~~(b) The Floodplain Administrator may impose, as a condition for the granting of a permit, the requirement for the construction of drainage and flood control facilities. Such construction requirement must be reasonably related to the public needs arising as a result of the development.

7-5.507 – Mapping Requirements.

(a) In SFHAs, the Floodplain Administrator shall require a letter of conditional approval (Conditional Letter of Map Revision, CLOMR) be obtained from FEMA for any development that will cause measurable impact on the BFE on upstream or adjacent properties within a SFHA. The CLOMR must be received by the Floodplain Administrator prior to any grading or development within the floodplain, and the Letter of Map Revision must be approved by FEMA before start of construction.

(b) All new development within Zones AE or AH that will alter or relocate a floodway, or is dependent upon construction of a levee, shall obtain conditional approval (or a "CLOMR") from the Federal Emergency Management Agency prior to issuance of a Floodplain Development Permit.

(c) All new development within Zone A shall provide a BFE data to the Floodplain Administrator.

7-5.508 - Term.

(a) A Floodplain Development Permit shall be effective on the date of issuance and shall remain in force for one year, unless suspended or revoked by the Floodplain Administrator or voluntarily relinquished by the permittee.

(b) Before the expiration of a permit, a permittee may apply for an extension of time in which to complete the development.

(c) The Floodplain Administrator may extend the time for action by the permittee for a period not exceeding one hundred eighty (180) days upon payment of appropriate fees and a written request by the permittee showing that circumstances beyond the control of the permittee have prevented action from being taken.

(d) Permits shall not be extended more than once, except that the Floodplain Administrator may approve additional extensions of one hundred and eighty (180) days when the applicant demonstrates that special unusual circumstances exist not due solely to the fault of the applicant. In this case, the Floodplain Administrator may require that additional fees be paid and plans be revised to partially or fully comply with this ~~chapter~~Chapter.

7-5.509 – Transferability. A Floodplain Development Permit shall not be transferred or assigned from one person to another unless approved by the Floodplain Administrator and the person to whom the permit is to be transferred agrees to comply with the requirements of the original permit and to any conditions imposed therein.

7-5.510 - Amendment of Permit. Any proposed changes in the development authorized by the permit shall be submitted to the Floodplain Administrator for review. The permittee shall not undertake or allow development to occur which does not conform to the plans or conditions of the original permit, unless approved by the Floodplain Administrator. The Floodplain Administrator shall review any proposed changes in the same manner and pursuant to the same standards as the original application.

7-5.511 - Inspection. The Floodplain Administrator, or his designee, has the right to enter and inspect any property for which a Floodplain Development Permit has been applied to perform any duties or responsibilities imposed by this ~~chapter~~Chapter to determine applicability or compliance with this Chapter. The Floodplain Administrator

may also inspect any and all property for which a permit has been issued and on which development is occurring.

7-5.512 - Grounds for Suspension and Revocation. Any Floodplain Development Permit issued pursuant to this ~~Chapter~~ Chapter may be suspended during its term upon one or more of the following grounds:

(a) The physical state of the property differs from the descriptions, plans, or information furnished to the Floodplain Administrator in the permit application;

(b) The development does not conform to the conditions or terms of the permit; or

(c) The development is in violation of this ~~chapter~~Chapter, other City ordinances, or State or Federal laws.

7-5.513 - Method of Suspension or Revocation.

(a) The Floodplain Administrator may suspend or revoke a Floodplain Development Permit by issuing a notice of suspension or revocation, stating the reasons therefore, and serving same upon the permittee. If such an appeal is filed, the suspension or revocation shall remain in force and be effective until a final decision on the appeal is issued by the Board of Appeals.

(b) If the Floodplain Administrator suspends a permit, such permit may either be reinstated or revoked by the Floodplain Administrator, depending upon whether the permittee corrects the grounds stated for the suspension in the notice. If the permittee fails to remedy the grounds for suspension within a time period specified by the Floodplain Administrator, but in no event later than sixty (60) calendar days, the Floodplain Administrator shall revoke the permit.

7-5.514405 - Maintenance of Flood Protection Measures. If any levees, dikes, dams or reservoirs are privately owned, an operation or maintenance plan shall be required of the owner to be on file with the Administrator.

Article 56. - Provisions for Flood Hazard Reduction

7-5.601 - Prohibitions.

(a) New construction of any residential or non-residential structures in Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHAs).

(b) Storage or processing of hazardous, flammable or explosive materials in SFHAs.

(c) New and substantially improved critical facilities within SFHAs.

(d) The change of use of non-conforming structures from a non-residential structure to a residential structure or a mixed-use structure, or an increase in the residential use area of a mixed-use structure.

(e) The change of use of any structure to a critical facility, where such a change in use will render the new critical facility in violation of Section 7-5.601(e) and 7-5.603(e)(9), Critical Facilities.

(f) Basements with finished floor elevations below the Base Flood Elevation (BFE).

(g) Building enclosures, including breakaway walls, below the BFE.

(h) Crawl spaces greater than two (2) feet below grade, which shall be considered as basements.

(i) Installation of new and substantially-improved septic systems.

7-5.602 - Standards of Construction. Properties located outside the SFHA are still subject to potential flooding caused by local drainage problems. To ensure that new development is elevated well above the street level or otherwise protected from shallow drainage flooding the following standards are required for all development in all areas of the City:

(a) These standards shall apply on all development exceeding one-half acre in size, and/or increasing impervious area by over 5,000 square feet.

(b) The lowest floor elevation of any structures shall be at least one (1) foot above the crown of the nearest street.

(c) The site plan shall account for street flooding and local drainage from and onto adjoining properties and protects the building from local drainage flows.

(d) The site plan shall provide positive drainage away from the building site to an approved point of collection that does not create a hazard or problem on neighboring properties.

(e) All requirements of the most current NPDES Stormwater Permit shall be enforced including, but not limited to:

(1) Preference to the use of low-impact development techniques (instead of pipes, channels, or detention) to control the impacts of development on runoff.

(2) Include in the design of the stormwater management facilities appropriate “best management practices” that will improve the quality of surface water.

(3) At least once each year, the owners of all stormwater management facilities including, but not limited to, retention basins, detention basins, debris basins and “best management practices:”

(i) Have the facilities inspected by a licensed professional engineer:

(ii) Perform any and all necessary maintenance, repair or replacement as recommended by the engineer; and

(iii) Submit the report to the Floodplain Administrator.

(iv) If the owner fails to perform items (i), (ii) or (iii) above, the City shall have the authority to perform the inspection, maintenance repair and/or replacement and ~~seek~~receive reimbursement from the owner for the work performed.

(f) For all new development, the maximum storm water discharge of the 10, 25, 50 and 100-year storms shall be limited to the pre-developed ten-year (10-year) peak flow rate.

(1) Before development, the developer must submit hydrologic and hydraulic studies showing the nature and extent of runoff under present conditions and with the proposed development for those four rainfall events. Peak runoff from new development shall be no greater than the runoff from the site in its pre-development condition.

(2) For projects of less than ten (10) acres, on-site detention in the amount of 1,000 cubic feet per acre of developed area or greater shall be provided.

(3) For projects of or greater than ten (10) acres, the required detention storage shall be based on a calculated hydrograph for a developed 100-year frequency storm.

(4) Additional detention may be considered for reduction of the discharge rate commensurate with deficiencies in downstream facilities.

7-5.501-603 - Standards of Construction Within the SFHA. In all ~~Special Flood Hazard Areas~~SFHAs, the following standards are required:

(a) Anchoring.

(1) All new construction, substantial improvement and other proposed new development shall be adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse

or lateral movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy~~;~~.

(2) All manufactured homes shall meet the anchoring standards of Section 7-5.504605(a)(1).

(b) Construction materials and methods. All new construction and substantial improvements of structures, including manufactured homes, shall be constructed:

(1) With electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and air conditioning equipment and all other mechanical systems and service facilities located at least one (1) foot above the BFE;

(2) Using methods and practices that minimize flood damage;

~~(1)(3)~~ Within Zones AH or AO, so that there is adequate drainage paths around structures on slopes to guide flood waters around and away from proposed structures; and

(4) Must be constructed on foundations that are designed and sealed by a registered design professional as complying with the requirements of the International Building Code, the International Residential Code, or ASCE 24.

~~(1) All new construction, substantial improvement and other proposed new development shall be constructed with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage.~~

~~(2) All new construction, substantial improvement and other proposed new development shall be constructed using methods and practices that minimize flood damage.~~

~~(3) All new construction, substantial improvement and other proposed new development shall be constructed with electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and air conditioning equipment and other service facilities that are designed and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding.~~

~~(c) Elevation and floodproofing.~~

~~(1) New construction, substantial improvement and other proposed new development shall have the lowest floor, including the basement, elevated to a minimum of one foot above the base flood elevation. Nonresidential structures may meet the standards in Section 7-5.501(c)(3). Upon the completion of the structure, the elevation of the lowest floor, including basement, shall be certified by a registered professional engineer or surveyor, or verified by the City's building inspector~~

~~to be properly elevated. Such certification or verification shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator. Failure to submit said certification shall be cause to issue a stop-work order for the project.~~

~~(2) New construction, substantial improvement and other proposed new development in Zone AO shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated one foot above the highest adjacent grade at least one foot higher than the depth number specified in feet on the Flood Insurance Rate Map or at least two (2) feet if no depth number is specified. Nonresidential structures may meet the standards in Section 7-5.501(c)(3). Upon the completion of the structure the elevation of the lowest floor, including basement, shall be certified by a registered professional engineer or surveyor, or verified by the City's building inspector to be properly elevated. Such certification or verification shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator. Failure to submit said certification shall be cause to issue a stop-work order for the project.~~

~~(3) Nonresidential construction shall either be elevated to conform with Section 7-5.501(c)(1) or 7-5.501(c)(2) or, together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities:~~

~~(i) Be floodproofed so that the structure is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water below the base flood level;~~

~~(ii) Have structural components capable of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and effects of buoyancy; and~~

~~(iii) Be certified, by a registered professional engineer or architect, that the standards of this subsection are satisfied. Such certifications shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator and failure to do so shall be cause to issue a stop-work order for the project.~~

~~(4) Require, for all new construction, substantial improvement and other proposed new development, that fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor that are usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access or storage in an area other than a basement and which are subject to flooding shall be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwater. Designs for meeting this requirement must either be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect or meet or exceed the following minimum criteria:~~

~~(i) Either a minimum of two (2) openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall be provided, the bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves or other coverings or devices provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwater;~~

~~(5) Manufactured homes shall also meet the standards in Section 7-5.504.~~

(c) Fill. The following standards apply to all fill activities in SFHAs:

(1) Fill sites, upon which structures will be constructed or placed, must be compacted to 95 percent of the maximum density obtainable with the Standard Proctor Test method or an acceptable equivalent method;

(2) Fill slopes shall not be steeper than one (1) foot vertical to two feet horizontal;

(3) Fill shall extend at least ten (10) feet beyond the foundation of all structures before it drops below the BFE, unless certified to be resistant against erosion and scour;

(4) Adequate protection against erosion and scour is provided for fill slopes. When expected velocities during the occurrence of the base flood are greater than five feet per second armoring with stone or rock protection shall be provided. When expected velocities during the base flood are five feet per second or less protection shall be provided by covering them with vegetative cover;

(5) Fill shall be composed of clean granular or earthen material;
and

(6) In any area that has been removed from the floodplain via a Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill, any existing or new structure, addition or substantial improvement must meet the required elevation freeboard requirements.

(d) Elevation and Floodproofing.

(1) Certification. Prior to occupancy of any structure, an Elevation Certificate for the lowest floor and mechanical equipment shall be certified by a registered civil engineer or licensed land surveyor, and verified by the community building inspector to be properly elevated to meet all ~~chapter~~Chapter requirements. Such certification and verification shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator. Failure to submit said certification shall be cause to issue a stop-work order for the development.

(2) Residential construction. All new construction or substantial improvements of residential structures shall have the lowest floor:

(i) In AE and AH Zones, elevated at least one (1) foot above the BFE.

(ii) In an AO zone, elevated above the highest adjacent

grade to a height at least one (1) foot above the depth number specified in feet on the FIRM, or elevated at least two (2) feet above the highest adjacent grade if no depth number is specified.

(iii) In an A zone, without BFEs specified on the FIRM (unnumbered A zone), elevated at least one (1) foot above the BFE as determined under Section 7-5.402(c).

(iv) New development proposals will be designed, to the maximum extent practicable, so residential building sites, walkways, driveways, and roadways are located on land with a natural grade with elevation not less than the BFE and with evacuation routes leading directly out of the floodplain area (dryland access).

(3) Non-residential construction. All new construction or substantial improvements of non-residential structures shall either be elevated to conform to Section 7-5.603(e)(2) or:

(i) Be floodproofed, together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, to at least one (1) foot above the elevation recommended under Section 7-5.603(e)(2), so that the structure is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water;

(ii) Have structural components capable of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and effects of buoyancy; and

(iii) Be certified by a registered civil engineer or architect that the standards of Section 7-5.603(e)(3)(i) and 7-5.603(e)(3)(ii) are satisfied. Such certification shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator.

(iv) New development proposals will be designed, to the maximum extent practicable, so non-residential building sites, walkways, driveways, and roadways are located on land with a natural grade with elevation not less than the BFE and with evacuation routes leading directly out of the floodplain area.

(4) Non-Conversion. To put current and future tenants and owners on notice that the area below the BFE may not be architecturally finished and converted to living space and that the space may only be used as incidental material storage, building access and vehicle parking, a non-conversion agreement shall be required whenever there is a height of more than five feet. The non-conversion agreement shall be in a form acceptable to the Floodplain Administrator and City Attorney. The Floodplain Administrator shall have the right to inspect for conversion with 72-hour notice. By this Chapter, the Director of the Public Works shall have authority to execute the non-conversion agreements on behalf of the City of Simi Valley.

(5) Flood openings. All new construction and substantial improvements of structures with fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor that are

usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access or storage, and which are subject to flooding, shall be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwater. Designs for meeting this requirement must meet the following minimum criteria:

(i) For non-engineered openings:

(A) Have a minimum of two openings on different sides having a total net area of not less than one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding;

(B) The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one (1) foot above grade;

(C) Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves or other coverings or devices provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwater; and

(D) Buildings with more than one enclosed area must have openings on exterior walls for each area to allow flood water to directly enter; or

(ii) For engineered openings. Be certified by a registered civil engineer or architect.

(6) Manufactured homes. See Section 7-5.605.

(7) Garages and low cost accessory structures.

(i) Attached garages.

(A) A garage attached to a residential structure, constructed with the garage floor slab below the BFE, must be designed to allow for the automatic entry of flood waters. See Section 7-5.603(e)(5). Areas of the garage below the BFE must be constructed with flood resistant materials. See Section 7-5.603(b).

(B) A garage attached to a non-residential structure must meet the above requirements or be dry floodproofed. For guidance on below grade parking areas, see FEMA Technical Bulletin TB-6.

(ii) Detached garages and accessory structures.

(A) "Accessory structures" used solely for parking (two-car detached garages or smaller) or limited storage (small, low-cost sheds), as defined in Section 2, may be constructed such that its floor is below the BFE, provided the structure is designed and constructed in accordance with the following

requirements:

(I) Use of the accessory structure must be limited to parking or limited storage;

(II) The portions of the accessory structure located below the BFE must be built using flood-resistant materials;

(III) The accessory structure must be adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse and lateral movement;

(IV) Any mechanical and utility equipment in the accessory structure must be elevated or floodproofed to at least one (1) foot above the BFE;

(V) The accessory structure must comply with floodplain encroachment provisions in Section 7-5.608; and

(VI) The accessory structure must be designed to allow for the automatic entry of flood waters in accordance with Section 7-5.603(e)(5).

(B) Detached garages and accessory structures not meeting the above standards must be constructed in accordance with all applicable standards in Section 7-5.603.

(8) Crawl Space Construction. This sub-section applies to buildings with crawl spaces up two (2) feet below grade. Below-grade crawl space construction in accordance with the requirements listed below will not be considered basements.

(i) The building must be designed and adequately anchored to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy. Crawl space construction is not allowed in areas with flood velocities greater than five (5) feet per second unless the design is reviewed by a qualified design professional, such as a registered architect or professional engineer;

(ii) The crawl space is an enclosed area below the BFE and, as such, must have openings that equalize hydrostatic pressures by allowing for the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters. For guidance on flood openings, see FEMA Technical Bulletin 1-93;

(iii) Portions of the building below the BFE must be constructed with materials resistant to flood damage. This includes not only the foundation walls of the crawl space used to elevate the building, but also any joists,

insulation, or other materials that extend below the BFE; and

(iv) Any building utility systems within the crawl space must be elevated at least one (1) foot above the BFE or designed so that floodwaters cannot enter or accumulate within the system components during flood conditions.

(v) Requirements for all below-grade crawl space construction, in addition to the above requirements, to include the following:

(A) The interior grade of a crawl space below the BFE must not be more than two (2) feet below the lowest adjacent exterior grade (LAG), shown as "D" in figure 3 of Technical Bulletin 11-01;

(B) The height of the below-grade crawl space, measured from the interior grade of the crawl space to the top of the crawl space foundation wall must not exceed four (4) feet (shown as L in figure 3 of Technical Bulletin 11-01) at any point;

(C) There must be an adequate drainage system that removes floodwaters from the interior area of the crawl space within a reasonable period of time after a flood event, not to exceed 72 hours; and

(D) The velocity of floodwaters at the site should not exceed five (5) feet per second for any crawl space. For velocities in excess of five (5) feet per second, other foundation types should be used.

(9) Critical Facilities

(i) Construction of new critical facilities shall be located outside the limits of the 500-year floodplain.

(A) Critical facilities constructed adjacent to the 500-year floodplain shall have the lowest floor elevated at least one (1) foot above the level of the 500-year flood.

(ii) Non-substantial improvement to existing critical facilities within the SFHA shall have the lowest floor elevated at least one (1) foot above the level of the 500-year flood.

(A) Access to and from the critical facility should be protected to the heights utilized above.

(B) Flood-proofing and sealing measures must be taken to ensure that toxic substances will not be displaced by or released into floodwaters.

(C) Access routes elevated to or above the level of the BFE shall be provided to all critical facilities to the extent possible.

7-5.502-604 - Standards for Utilities.

(a) (a) All new and replacement water supply and sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate:

(1) Infiltration of flood waters into the system; and

(1)(2) Discharge from systems into flood waters;

(b) On-site waste disposal systems shall not be located in SFHAs. See Section 7-5.601(i) be located to avoid impairment to them or contamination from them during flooding;

(c) Other utilities are addressed in Sections 7-5.103(e) and 7-5.605(c)-7-5.501(b) and 7-5.503(d).

7-5.503-605 - Standards for Subdivisions and Other Proposed Development.

(a) All new subdivisions proposals and other proposed development, including proposals for manufactured home parks and subdivisions greater than one (1) acre shall:

(1) Provide future conditions hydrologic and hydraulic engineering analysis to identify the 100-year, 500-year and floodway flood elevations and boundaries.

(i) Analysis shall use the City's most recent aerial and Quality Level 1 (QL1) or better LiDAR topography.

(ii) Analysis shall be consistent with the most current City Master Plan of Drainage models and future conditions hydrologic land use mapping.

(2) Identify the elevations of lowest floors of all proposed structures and pads on the final plans.

(3) If the site is filled above the BFE, the following as-built information for each structure shall be certified by a registered civil engineer or licensed land surveyor and provided as part of an application for a Letter of Map Revision based on Fill (LOMR-F) to the Floodplain Administrator:

(i) Lowest floor elevation.

(ii) Pad elevation.

(iii) Lowest adjacent grade.

~~(a) All preliminary subdivision proposals shall identify the flood hazard area and the elevation of the base flood.~~

~~(b) All final subdivision plans will provide the elevation of proposed structure(s) and pad(s). If the site is filled above the base flood elevation, the final pad elevation shall be certified by a registered professional engineer or surveyor and provided to the Floodplain Administrator.~~

~~(b) (c) All subdivision proposals shall be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage.~~

~~(c)(b) (d) All subdivision proposals shall have public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical and water systems located and constructed to minimize flood damage.~~

~~(c) (e) All subdivisions shall provide adequate drainage to reduce exposure to flood hazards. Certification of compliance shall be required of the developer.~~

(d) In areas upstream of the Limit of Study, as delineated on the community FIRM, where BFE data is not available, a floodplain study must be performed by a Professional Engineer (PE) establishing the BFE and the floodplain and floodway boundaries prior to issuing a development permit.

(e) All proposed lots or parcels that will be future building sites shall have a minimum buildable area outside the natural (non-filled) one-percent (1%) chance annual floodplain. The buildable area shall be large enough to accommodate any primary structure and associated structures such as sheds, barns, swimming pools, detached garages, on-site sewage disposal systems, and water supply wells, if applicable.

(f) Unless otherwise approved by the City Council, the following shall apply:

(1) All street surfaces must be located at or above the BFE; and

(2) Commercial and industrial development may not allow parking more than one (1) foot below the BFE.

7-5.504-606 - Standards for Manufactured Homes.

(a) All manufactured homes that are placed or substantially improved within a ~~Special Flood Hazard Area~~SFHA on the City's Flood Insurance Rate Map and which are either (a) outside of a manufactured home park or subdivision, (b) in a new manufactured home park or subdivision, (c) in an expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision, or (d) in an existing manufactured home park or subdivision on which a manufactured home has incurred "substantial damage" as the result of a flood shall:

~~be elevated on a permanent foundation such that the lowest floor of the manufactured home is elevated to a minimum of one foot above the base flood elevation and be securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse and lateral movement.~~

(1) Within Zones AH and AE on the community's Flood Insurance Rate Map, be elevated on a permanent foundation such that the lowest floor of the manufactured home is elevated at least one (1) foot above the BFE and be securely fastened to an adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement.

(b) (b) — All manufactured homes to be placed or substantially improved on sites in an existing manufactured home park or subdivision within ~~Zones AH and AEa Special Flood Hazard Area~~ on the City's Flood Insurance Rate Map that are not subject to the provisions of Section 7-5.504605(a) ~~of this section will be elevated so that the lowest floor of the manufactured home is at a minimum of one foot above the base flood elevation.~~ will be securely fastened to an adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement, and be elevated so that either the:

(1) Lowest floor of the manufactured home is at least one (1) foot above the BFE; or

(2) The manufactured home chassis is supported by reinforced piers or other foundation elements of at least equivalent strength that are no less than thirty-six (36) inches in height above grade.

Upon the completion of the structure, the elevation of the lowest floor shall be certified by a registered civil engineer or licensed land surveyor and verified by the community building inspector to be properly elevated. Such certification and verification shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator.

7-5.505-607 - Standards for Recreational Vehicles. All recreational vehicles placed on sites within ~~Zones AH and AEa Special Flood Hazard Area shown~~ on the City's Flood Insurance Rate Map will either:

(a) Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days; or

(b) Be fully licensed and ready for highway use. A recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and security devices, and has no permanently attached additions; or

(c) Meet the permit requirements of ~~Article 4~~Section 7-5.501 of this ~~chapter~~Chapter and the elevation and anchoring requirements for manufactured homes in Section 7-5.~~504~~605.

7-5.506-608 - Standards for the Storage of Materials and Equipment.

(a) In ~~Special Flood Hazard Areas~~SFHAs, the storage or processing of materials that are, in time of flooding, buoyant, flammable, explosive, or could be injurious to human, animal, or plant life, is prohibited.

(b) Storage of other material or equipment may be allowed if not subject to major damage by floods and firmly anchored to prevent flotation or if readily removable from the area within the time after flood warning.

7-5.507-609 - Floodways. Located within ~~Special Flood Hazard Areas~~SFHAs, established in Section 7-5.302, are areas designated as floodways. The regulatory floodway shown in the Flood Insurance Study has been selected and adopted on the principle that the area chosen for the regulatory floodway must be designed to carry the waters of the base flood without increasing the water surface of that flood more than one (1) foot at any point. In accordance with this principle, and the fact that the floodway is an extremely hazardous area due to the velocity of flood waters which carry debris, potential projectiles, and erosion potential, the following provisions apply:

(a) Prohibit encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvement, and other new development unless certification by a registered professional engineer or architect is provided demonstrating that encroachments shall not result in any increase in flood levels during the occurrence of the base flood discharge;

(b) If Section 7-5.~~507~~608(a) of this section is satisfied, all new construction, substantial improvement, and other proposed new development shall comply with all other applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of Article 56.

(c) All new construction, substantial improvements, and other development within floodways which will cause increases in the BFE shall only be permitted if the Permittee has applied to the Federal Emergency Management Agency for modification of the flood insurance rate maps and has received conditional approval of such modifications, and all other applicable provisions of this Chapter are satisfied.

~~(a)~~(d) If no floodway is identified, the applicant for a flood area development permit shall provide an engineering study to demonstrate that any new development will not

increase the water surface elevation of the base flood by more than one-tenth of one foot (0.1').

7-5.508-610 - Floodways Not Delineated. If no floodway is identified, the applicant for a flood area development permit shall provide an engineering study to demonstrate that any new development will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood by one-tenth of one foot (0.1') ~~six (6) inches~~ or more.

Article 67. - Loading

7-5.601-701 - General. All structures covered by this ~~chapter~~Chapter shall be capable of resisting all loads required by the building code and the loads prescribed in this ~~chapter~~Chapter without exceeding allowable stresses. "Water loads" are loads or pressures on surfaces of structures caused and induced by the presence of flood waters. They are hydrostatic, hydrodynamic or impact loads.

7-5.602-702 - Hydrostatic Loads.

(a) Hydrostatic loads are those caused by water above or below surface, free or confined, which is either stagnant or moves at low velocities less than five (5) feet per second.

The pressure at any point is equal to the unit weight of water (62.4 pounds per cubic foot) multiplied by the height of water above the point to which confined water would rise if free to do so.

Hydrostatic loads consist of vertical loads, lateral loads, and uplift.

(1) Vertical loads. These are loads acting vertically downward on horizontal or inclined surfaces of buildings or structures, such as roofs, decks or floors, and walls, caused by the weight of flood waters above them.

(2) Lateral loads. Lateral hydrostatic loads are those which act in a horizontal direction, against vertical or inclined surfaces, both above and below the ground surface and tend to cause lateral displacement overturning of the building, structure, or parts thereof.

(3) Uplift. Uplift loads are those which act in a vertically upward direction on the underside of horizontal or sloping surfaces of buildings or structures, such as basement slabs, footings, floors, decks, roofs and overhangs. Hydrostatic loads acting on inclined, rounded or irregular surfaces may be resolved into vertical or uplift loads and lateral loads based on the geometry of the surfaces and the distribution of hydrostatic pressures.

7-5.603-703 - Hydrodynamic Loads.

Hydrodynamic loads, the purpose of these regulations, are those induced on structures the flow of flood water moving at moderate to high velocity around the structures or parts thereof, above ground level. Such loads may occur below the ground level when openings or conduits exist which allow free flow of flood waters. Hydrodynamic loads are basically of the lateral type and relate to direct impact loads by the moving mass of water, and to drag forces as the water flows around the obstruction.

Conversion to equivalent hydrostatic loads. For the purpose of these regulations, and for cases when water velocities do not exceed ten (10) feet per second, dynamic effects of the moving water may be converted into equivalent hydrostatic loads by increasing the depth of water by an amount dh, on the upstream side and above the ground level only, equal to:

$$dh = \frac{a V^2}{2g}, \text{ where}$$

"V" is the average velocity of the water in feet per second;

"g" is the acceleration of gravity, 32.2 feet per second per second; [and](#)

"a" is the coefficient of drag or shape factor. (The value of "a", unless otherwise evaluated, shall not be less than 1.25).

The equivalent surcharge depth "dh" shall be added to the depth measured between the design level and the regulatory flood and the resultant pressures applied to, and uniformly distributed across, the vertical projected area of the building or structure which is perpendicular to the flow. Surfaces parallel to the flow or surfaces facing downstream shall be considered subject to hydrostatic pressures for depths to the regulatory flood only.

7-5.604-704 - Impact Loads.

(a) Types. For the purposes of these regulations, impact loads are those which result from floating debris and floatable objects or masses carried by flood waters striking against structures or parts thereof. These loads are of two (2) basic types: normal and special.

(1) Normal impact loads. Normal impact loads are those which relate to isolated occurrences of logs or floatable objects of normally encountered sizes striking buildings or parts thereof.

(2) Special impact loads. Special impact loads are those which relate to large conglomerates of floatable objects, such as an accumulation of floating debris, either striking or resting against a building or parts thereof.

(b) Applicability. Impact loads shall be considered in the design of structures and parts thereof as stipulated below:

(1) Normal impact loads. A concentrated load acting horizontally at the regulatory flood level or at any point below it, equal to the impact force, produced by a 1,000 pound mass traveling at the velocity of the flood water and acting on a one (1) square foot surface of the structure.

(i) Deceleration of the mass shall occur over 0.5 seconds;

(ii) This load shall be applied to the structure in such a manner that stresses are maximized.

(2) Special impact loads. Special impact loads shall be considered in the design of buildings, structures, or parts thereof. Unless a rational and detailed analysis is made and submitted for approval by the Director of Public Works, the intensity of load shall be taken as one-hundred (100) pounds per foot acting horizontally over a one foot wide horizontal strip at the regulatory flood level or at any level below it. Where natural or artificial barriers exist which would effectively prevent these special impact loads from occurring, the loads may be ignored in the design.

7-5.605-705 - Pressure Equalization. All new construction and substantial improvements that fully enclose areas below the lowest floor and that are subject to flooding shall be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters. Designs for meeting this requirement must either be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect to meet or exceed the following minimum criteria: A minimum of two (2) openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall be provided. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one (1) foot above grade. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or devices provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters. See Section 7-5.603(e)(5).

Pressure equalization shall be appropriate for unfinished or flood-resistant enclosures either unused or solely used for parking of vehicles, building access or storage in areas other than basements. All other structures shall be elevated or floodproofed pursuant to the terms of this ~~chapter~~Chapter.

Article 78. - Variance Procedures

7-5.701-801 - Conditions for Variances.

~~(a) Generally, variances may be issued for new construction, substantial improvement and other proposed new development to be erected on a lot of one-half (½) acre or less in size contiguous to and surrounded by lots with existing structures constructed below the base flood level providing that the procedures of~~

~~Articles 4 and 5 of this chapter have been fully considered. As the lot size increases beyond one-half (1/2) acre, the technical justification required for issuing the variance shall also increase.~~

(a) ~~(b)~~—Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of "Historic Structures" upon a determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure and the variance is the minimum necessary to preserve the historic character and design of the structure.

(b) ~~(c)~~—Variances shall not be issued within any designated regulatory floodway if any increase in flood levels during the base flood discharge would result ~~except that a variance may be approved if the Administrator of the Federal Insurance Administration has previously given conditional approval.~~

(c) ~~(d)~~—Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the "minimum necessary" considering the flood hazard, to afford relief. "Minimum necessary" means to afford relief with a minimum of deviation from the requirements of this chapterChapter. For example, in the case of variances to an elevation requirement, this means the Floodplain Administrator need not grant permission for the applicant to build at grade, or even to whatever elevation the applicant proposes, but only to that elevation which the Floodplain Administrator believes will both provide relief and preserve the integrity of this chapterChapter

~~(d)~~ ~~(e)~~—Variances shall only be issued upon all of the following:

(1) ~~(a)~~ ~~aA~~ showing of good and sufficient cause, which does not include economic considerations, aesthetics, or past practices;

(2) ~~(b)~~ ~~aA~~ determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional "hardship" to the applicant; and

~~(1)(3)~~ ~~(c)~~ ~~aA~~ determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, create "nuisances", cause a fraud upon the public, or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances.

~~(f)~~ ~~(e)~~ Upon consideration of the factors of Section 7-5.703802(d) and the purposes of this ~~chapter~~ Chapter, the Planning Commission, acting as the Variance Board, may attach such conditions to the granting of a variance as it deems necessary to further the purposes of this ~~chapter~~ Chapter.

7-5.702-802 - Nature of Variances. The issuance of a variance is for floodplain management purposes only. Insurance premium rates are determined by statute according to actuarial risk and will not be modified by the granting of a variance.

The variance criteria set forth in this section of this ~~chapter~~Chapter are based on the general principle of zoning law that variances pertain to a piece of property and are not personal in nature. A variance may be granted for a parcel of property with physical characteristics so unusual that complying with the requirements of this ~~chapter~~Chapter would create an exceptional hardship to the applicant or the surrounding property owners. The characteristics must be unique to the property and not be shared by adjacent parcels. The unique characteristic must pertain to the land itself, not to the structure, its inhabitants, or the property owners.

It is the duty of the City ~~Council~~ to help protect its citizens from flooding. This need is so compelling, and the implications of the cost of insuring a structure built below the flood level are so serious that variances from the flood elevation or from other requirements in this ~~chapter~~Chapter are intended to be quite rare. The long-term goal of preventing and reducing flood loss and damage can only be met if variances are strictly limited. Therefore, the variance guidelines provided in this ~~chapter~~Chapter are detailed and contain multiple provisions that must be met before a variance can be properly granted. The criteria are designed to screen out those situations in which alternatives other than a variance are more appropriate.

7-5.703-803 - Variance Board.

(a) ~~(a)~~ — The Planning Commission of the City ("Commission"), acting as the Variance Board, shall hear and decide appeals of a decision of the Floodplain Administrator and requests for variances from the requirements of this ~~chapter~~Chapter. The Commission, and Council on appeal of a decision of the Commission, shall hear the variance application at a noticed public hearing with notice made as required for variances pursuant to Title 9, Planning and Zoning, of this Code.

(b) ~~(b)~~ — The Commission shall hear and decide appeals when it is alleged there is an error in any requirement, decision, or determination made by the Floodplain Administrator in the enforcement or administration of this ~~chapter~~Chapter. ~~Such appeals shall be filed with the City Clerk within ten (10) calendar days following the Administrator's action and shall specify the project and grounds for appeal.~~

(c) ~~(c)~~ — Those aggrieved by the decision of the Commission, pursuant to this ~~chapter~~Chapter, may appeal such decision to the City Council. Such appeal shall be filed with the City Clerk within ten (10) calendar days of the Commission's decision and shall specify the project and grounds for appeal.

(d) ~~(d)~~ — Variances shall only be issued upon a:

(1) Showing of good and sufficient cause;

(2) Determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional "hardship" to the applicant; and

(3) Determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, or extraordinary public expense, create a nuisance (see "Public safety and nuisance"), cause "fraud and victimization" of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances.

~~(d)~~(e) In hearing such applications, the Commission shall consider all of the following:

- (1) The standards specified in this ~~chapter~~Chapter;
- (2) Engineering and technical reports prepared for the project;
- (3) The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the injury of others;
- (4) The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage;
- (5) The susceptibility of the proposed structure and its contents to flood damage and the effect of such damage on the existing and future owners of the property;
- (6) The importance of the community of the services provided by the proposed facility;
- (7) The availability of alternative locations for the proposed use, which are not subject to flooding or erosion damage;
- (8) The compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated development;
- (9) The relationship of the proposed use to the General Plan and floodplain management program for that area;
- (10) The safety of access to the property in time of flood for ordinary and emergency vehicles;
- (11) The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise, and sediment transport of the flood waters expected at the site; and
- (12) The costs of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions, including maintenance and repair of public utilities and facilities, such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water system, and streets and bridges.

(f) ~~(e)~~—Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice by the City that:

(1) ~~(a)~~ The issuance of a variance to construct a structure below the base flood level will result in increased premium rates for flood insurance up to amounts as high as Twenty-five and no/100ths (\$25.00) Dollars for One Hundred and no/100ths (\$100.00) Dollars of insurance coverage; and

~~(1)(2) (b)~~ Such construction below the base flood level increases risks to life and property. A copy of the notice shall be recorded by the Floodplain Administrator in the Office of the Ventura County Recorder and shall be recorded in a manner so that it appears in the chain of title of the affected parcel of land.

~~(e)(g)~~ The Floodplain Administrator will maintain a record of all variance actions, including justification for their issuance, and report such variances issued in its biennial report submitted to the Federal Insurance Administration, Federal Emergency Management Agency.

7-5.804 – Notice of Appeal.

(a) A request for appeal may be taken only by filing a written notice of appeal with the Secretary of the Board no later than the tenth (10th) day after the date the Floodplain Administrator makes a written determination accepting, denying, or modifying a proposed application to this ~~chapter~~Chapter.

(b) Each notice of appeal shall include:

(1) A description of the work or improvements proposed to be made or done;

(2) A description of the proposed location of the work or improvements;

(3) The reasons, in detail, why:

(i) The decision of the Floodplain Administrator should not be sustained; and

(ii) The relief requested for should be granted.

(c) An application for appeal shall be based on a claim that the true intent of this ~~chapter~~Chapter or the rules legally adopted thereunder have been incorrectly interpreted, the provisions of this ~~chapter~~Chapter do not fully apply, or an equally good or better form of construction is proposed.

7-5.805 – Decisions.

(a) Should the Board render a decision contrary to that of the

Floodplain Administrator, then the decision of Board shall be deemed the decision of the Floodplain Administrator.

(b) The decision of the Board shall be final and conclusive.

Article 89. - Map Amendments

7-5.801-901 - Alteration of a Special Flood Hazard Area. When a Special Flood Hazard Area, as established in accordance with Section 7-5.302, is altered due to development or a flood control project, the party responsible for the alteration shall submit a request, on forms submitted by the Floodplain Administrator, to the Federal Insurance Administration, Federal Emergency Management Agency, that a map revision be made.

7-5.802-902 - Map Amendments.

(a) The procedures for map corrections, letters of map amendment, conditional letters of map revision and letters of map revision shall be those set forth by the Federal Emergency Management Agency in the Code of Federal Regulations. These regulations shall be kept on file in the Department of Public Works. The City is preempted from enacting any procedures in this area.

(b) The City shall require a fee in an amount to be determined by resolution of the City Council for processing any map amendment requests to the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

(c) All map revisions and watershed studies shall include analyses based on future build-out conditions hydrology associated with anticipated watershed growth and land-use and land-cover changes. These future condition analyses shall be included on community floodplain maps and will serve as the basis for this regulation.